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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors
Care New England Health System

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Care New England Health System
and its affiliates (“Care New England”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September
30, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Care New
England's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated] financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Care New England's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

The PricewaterhouseCoopers affiliated firm in the Cayman Islands performed audit procedures for the
Women & Infants Indemnity, Ltd and Kent County Memorial Hospital Toll Gate Indemnity, Ltd.,
comprising approximately 17% and 17% of total assets of Care New England for the years ended September
30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Personnel of this firm, excluding United States personnel, do not
participate in a continuing education program that fully satisfies the requirement set forth in Chapter 4,
paragraph 4.16 of Government Auditing Standards. However, this firm does participate in continuing
education programs applicable in the Cayman Islands.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 101 Seaport Boulevard, Suite 500, Boston, MA 02210
T: (617) 530 5000, www.pwc.com/us
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Further, the PricewaterhouseCoopers affiliated firm in the Cayman Islands does not have an external
quality review by an unaffiliated audit organization as required by Chapter 5, paragraph 5.60 of
Government Auditing Standards, since no such program is offered by professional organizations in the
country. However, this office participates in the PricewaterhouseCoopers worldwide internal control
review program, which requires the office to be periodically subjected to an extensive quality control
review by partners and managers from other PricewaterhouseCoopers affiliated firms.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Care New England and its affiliates as of September 30,
2021 and 2020, and their operations, changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The consolidating information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves
and other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The consolidating information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to
present the financial position, results of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows of the individual
companies and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the financial position, results of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows of
the individual companies.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended September
30, 2021 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. The information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 20,
2021 on our consideration of Care New England’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters for the year ended September 30, 2021. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Care New England's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

/Pam.,m\\.m Cospnn LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 20, 2021



Care New England Health System and Affiliates

Consolidated Balance Sheets
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Patient accounts receivable
Other receivables
Pledges receivable, net
Other current assets
Current portion of assets whose use is limited

Total current assets

Assets whose use is limited or restricted as to use
Endowment funds
Board-designated funds
Trustee-held funds
Deferred compensation funds

Total assets limited as to use

Less: Amounts required to meet current obligations
Noncurrent assets limited as to use

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment, net
Finance lease right-of-use assets, net
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net
Long-term pledges receivable, net
Insurance receivable

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Current portion of estimated third-party payor settlements and advances
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of finance lease liability
Current portion of operating lease liability
Self-insurance reserves
Pension liability
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Self-insurance reserves
Long-term portion of estimated third-party payor settiements and advances
Long-term debt
Long-term finance lease liability
Long-term operating lease liability
Pension liability
Postretirement liability
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2021 2020
$ 18717659 § 133,131,336
100,229,300 -
108,447,566 99,992,705
35,602,720 27,138,352
1,052,371 331,527
17,349,509 17,669,555
2,092,713 2,095,686
283,491,838 280,359,161
83,737,351 71,723,926
156,322,996 132,384,151
213,047,469 184,312,110
1,889,016 1,509,048
454,996,832 389,929,235
(2,092,713) (2,095,686)
452,904,119 387,833,549
24,345,364 24,488,975
230,532,088 240,319,309
6,143,187 3,403,774
91,675,112 93,227,506
1,673,466 119,328
3,988,763 2,842,648
6,866,728 6,197,215

$ 1,101,620,665

$ 1,038,791,465

$ 144,273,716

$ 123,293,247

31,433,643 41,738,331
7,582,585 6,996,255
1,857,954 1,248,883
9,129,999 7,881,816
8,849,801 9,511,970

28,153,495 33,522,339
3,111,925 3,618,860
234,393,118 227,811,701
166,651,451 156,017,913
26,984,710 31,183,618

150,666,537 154,972,390

4,045,905 1,950,647
88,934,655 90,949,257
73,420,544 131,513,347

892,314 977,835
14,958,781 21,798,755

760,948,015 817,175,463

233,005,263 130,942,624

107,667,387 90,673,378

340,672,650 221,616,002

$ 1,101,620,665

$ 1,038,791,465

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Operating revenues, gains, and other support
Net patient service revenue $ 984,355,909 § 910,540,662
Research revenue 35,525,786 34,604,298
Grant revenue - relief funding 77,452,640 62,426,906
Other revenue 147,952,296 113,396,762
Net assets released from restrictions and used for operations 3,042,283 2,876,302
Total operating revenues, gains, and other support 1,248,328,914 1,123,844,930
Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits 731,325,156 691,085,608
Supplies and other expenses 353,199,162 314,185,631
Research expenses 30,930,396 31,416,471
Depreciation and amortization 31,181,265 29,640,134
Insurance 38,996,523 32,259,120
Licensure fee 38,340,710 45,254,839
Interest 7,724,938 7,679,342
Restructuring costs - Memorial Hospital 424,612 376,096
Total operating expenses 1,232,122,762 1,151,897,241
Income (loss) from operations 16,206,152 (28,052,311)
Nonoperating gains (losses)
Investment income and realized gains on assets limited as to use, net 14,654,434 11,655,285
Contributions 1,701,277 411,338
Change in net unrealized gains on investments 30,266,415 7,768,798
Other components of current period pension (1,730,715) (3,618,931)
Pension settlement (9,356,441) -
Other, net (1,456,697) (1,406,036)
Net nonoperating gains 34,078,273 14,810,454
Excess (deficiency) of revenues, gains, and other support over
expenses and losses 50,284,425 (13,241,857)
Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions
Pension and postretirement adjustments 51,175,952 (18,192,967)
Net assets released from restrictions used for purchase of
property, plant and equipment 1,164,334 1,929,102
Transfer to net assets with donor restrictions (562,072) (75,683)
Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions $ 102,062,639 $ (29,581,405)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Net assets without donor restrictions
Excess (deficiency) of revenues, gains, and other support over expenses and losses $ 50,284,425 $ (13,241,857)
Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions
Pension and postretirement adjustments 51,175,952 (18,192,967)
Net assets released from restrictions used for purchase of
property, plant and equipment 1,164,334 1,929,102
Transfer to net assets with donor restrictions (562,072) (75,683)
Increase (decrease) in net assets without donor restrictions 102,062,639 (29,581,405)
Net assets with donor restrictions
Contributions 7,713,892 4,662,446
Income from investments 373,526 472,830
Net realized and unrealized gains from investments 8,397,851 2,197,786
Changes in beneficial interest in assets held at community foundation 373,368 30,606
Changes in beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 4,231,008 1,355,912
Net assets released from restrictions (4,657,708) (5,247,965)
Transfers from net assets without donor restrictions 562,072 75,683
Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 16,994,009 3,547,298
Increase (decrease) in net assets 119,056,648 (26,034,107)
Net assets
Beginning of year 221,616,002 247,650,109
End of year $ 340,672,650 $ 221,616,002

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities
Change in beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Change in beneficial interest in assets held at community foundation
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment
Pension and postretirement adjustments
Pension settlement
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of finance lease right-of-use assets
Depreciation and amortization - assets with donor restrictions
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Bond premium amortization
Bond discount amortization
Realized gains on short-term investments and assets limited as to use
Net unrealized gains on short-term investments and assets limited as to use
Distributions received from equity method investments
Restricted contributions and investment income
Changes in
Patient accounts receivable
Other current and long-term assets
Intangibles
Goodwill
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Other liabilities
Net pension liability
Self-insurance reserves

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Additions to asset retirement obligations

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment
Distributions received from equity method investments
Change in trustee held funds

Purchase of investments

Proceeds from the sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt

Repayments of obligations under a financing lease
Restricted contributions to be used for long-term
investments and investment income

Net cash used in financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Beginning of year

End of year

Supplemental cash flow information

Cash paid for interest

Purchases of property and equipment included in
accounts payable and accrued expenses
Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets acquired under operating leases

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
reported in the consolidated balance sheets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash reported in assets whose use is limited or restricted as to use

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash shown in the
consolidated statements of cash flows

2021 2020
$ 119,056,648 $ (26,034,107)
(4,231,008) (1,355,912)
(373,368) (30,606)
(4,376,432) (391,227)
(51,175,952) 18,192,967
9,356,441 -
29,690,689 28,891,455
1,490,576 748,679
118,846 118,846
154,962 154,962
(650,448) (650,448)
56,467 56,467
(13,761,334) (7,843,306)
(35,964,601) (9,102,770)
- 577,000

(20,575) (7,025)
(8,454,861) (3,137,075)
(9,965,080) (118,247)

- 1,080,000

143,611 -
20,905,345 6,354,684
(14,503,596) 40,123,061
(3,991,496) 16,608,939
(21,727,657) 3,541,694
8,825,254 10,533,388
20,602,431 78,311,419
(21,347,136) (25,928,609)
- (33,335)

2,332,908 2,181,467

- 335,000

- 509
(256,039,909) (160,400,155)
154,135,099 170,315,457
(120,919,038) (13,529,666)
3,261,664 3,493,907
(6,780,504) (6,388,983)
(1,537,029) (885,295)
20,575 7,025
(5,035,294) (3,773,346)
(105,351,901) 61,008,407
147,425,566 86,417,159
$ 42,073,665 $ 147,425,566
$ 7762047 $ 7,655,059
723,152 393,361
4,229,990 3,144,220
9,078,421 5,803,465

$ 18,717,659 $ 133,131,336
23,356,006 14,294,230
$ 42073665 $ 147,425,566

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

1. Description of Organization

Corporate Structure

Care New England Health System (“CNE”, “Care New England”, “Health System”, or the “System”),
a Rhode Island not-for-profit corporation, was formed on November 7, 1995 as the holding
company for the development of an integrated delivery network under the name Enterprise Health
System. On January 29, 1996, the name was changed to Care New England Health System.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Care New England
and its affiliates, over which Care New England has corporate governance:

o  Butler Hospital (“Butler”) and its affiliates, Butler Hospital Foundation, Carriage House, LLC
(“Carriage”), and Butler Hospital Allied Medical Services, LLC.

e Kent County Memorial Hospital (“Kent”) and its affiliates, Kent Hospital Foundation, Kent
Ancillary Services, LLC, Affinity Physicians, LLC d/b/a Care New England Medical Group, LLC
(“CNEMG”), Toll Gate Indemnity, Ltd. (“Toll Gate”), and Care New England Pharmacy, LLC
(the "CNE Pharmacy”).

e  Women & Infants Corporation (“WIC”) and its affiliates, Women & Infants Development
Foundation, Women & Infants Hospital of Rhode Island (“WIH”), WIH Faculty Physicians, Inc.,
Women & Infants Ancillary Services, LLC, Women & Infants Health Care Alliance, LLC, and
W&I Indemnity, Ltd. ("“W&I Indemnity”).

¢ Kent County Visiting Nurse Association, d/b/a VNA of Care New England (the “YNA”), and its
affiliates, Healthtouch, Inc., Blackstone Health, Inc. (“BHI”) and VNA of Care New England
Foundation (together, the “Agency”).

e Integra Community Care Network, LLC. (“Integra”)

e  Southeastern Healthcare System, Inc. (“SHS”) and its affiliates, Memorial Hospital, Primary
Care Centers of New England, Inc. (‘PCCNE”), MHRI Ancillary Services, LLC, and The
Memorial Hospital Foundation. Memorial is the sole corporate member of SHS Ventures, Inc.
(“Ventures”).

e The Providence Center, Inc. (the “Center” or “TPC”) and its affiliates, Grandview Realty
Corporation (“Grandview Realty”), Grandview Second Corporation (“Grandview Second”),
Nashua Street Corporation (“Nashua”), Wilson Street Apartments, Inc. (“Wilson”), Standard
Realty, Inc. (“Standard”), TPC Social Ventures, Inc. (“TPC Social’), and Continuum Behavioral
Health, Inc. (“Continuum”).

e  Care New England Ambulatory Surgery Center, which was formed in July of 2020 for the
purposes of submitting a Certificate of Need (“CoN”) Application for a new Providence-based
ambulatory surgery center in Rhode Island. The entity is currently inactive. The CoN
Application was approved by the Rhode Island Department of Health on August 5, 2021, but
an interested competing facility filed an appeal of the decision, and the appeal is still pending
before a Hearing Officer of the Rhode Island Department of Administration.



Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

Care New England Health System, Butler, Kent, Kent County Visiting Nurse Association, SHS, The
Memorial Hospital (prior to December 22, 2017), TPC, WIC and WIH, are collectively, the
Obligated Group. The Obligated Group are parties to a Master Trust Indenture dated as of
September 1, 2016.

In October 2017, the Board of Directors (the “Boards”) of Memorial Hospital, its parent corporation,
SHS and Care New England voted to discontinue the operations of Memorial Hospital as a
licensed hospital. On December 1, 2017, Memorial Hospital, with the approval of the Rhode Island
Department of Health, closed both inpatient and surgical services. Emergency services were
closed on January 1, 2018. On May 1, 2018, the Rhode Island Department of Health formally
deactivated the Memorial Hospital licenses.

In December 2017, the Boards of the Obligated Group, determined that Memorial Hospital
withdraw from the Obligated Group, and on December 22, 2017, the Master Trustee approved the
release of Memorial Hospital from the Obligated Group.

Mission and Nature of Business

Care New England’s mission is to provide exceptional care with kindness and compassion and is
dedicated to building an exemplary health care system. Care New England oversees the three
Hospitals (Butler, Kent, and WIH), CNEMG, the VNA, the Center and other affiliated organizations.

Butler is a 143-bed, not-for-profit psychiatric teaching hospital, affiliated with The Warren Alpert

Medical School of Brown University, providing services for the care of patients from Rhode Island
and nearby Massachusetts. As a complement to its role in service and education, Butler actively
supports research by members of its staff. Butler is accredited by The Joint Commission (“TJC”).

Kent is a 359-bed, not-for-profit general hospital providing a full range of services for the acute care
of patients principally from Kent County, Rhode Island. Kent is affiliated with, and provides clinical
training to, the students of the University of New England College of Osteopathic Medicine and
currently operates an Accreditation Council of Graduate Medical Education approved residency
program in emergency medicine, and a fellowship program in hyperbaric medicine and
gastroenterology. In addition, Kent is a major teaching affiliate of The Warren Alpert Medical
School of Brown University in primary care medicine and the major teaching affiliate of The Warren
Alpert Medical School of Brown University in family medicine. Kent is accredited by TJC and the
Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities. Toll Gate, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Kent, insures primary and excess hospital professional and general (primary only) liability risks for
Kent and its employees on an occurrence basis, as well as primary professional and general
liability risks for the VNA and the Care New England Health System. As of October 1, 2017, Toll
Gate insures primary hospital professional and general liability for the System, excluding WIH and
CNEMG obstetric related employed physicians. Toll Gate insures Kent’s contractual liability arising
from employed physicians’ professional liability on both a claims-made and occurrence basis. Toll
Gate also insures Kent’s contractual liability (pursuant to certain Indemnification Agreements)
arising from community physicians’ professional liability on both a claims-made and occurrence
basis.



Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

WIH is a 247-bed, not-for-profit regional center for women and infants’ care in Rhode Island and
southern New England. Among other university affiliations, Women & Infants is the major affiliated
teaching hospital of The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University for activities unique to
women and newborns. As a complement to its role in service and education, WIH actively
supports research by members of its staff. WIH is accredited by TJC. W&l Indemnity is a wholly
owned subsidiary of WIH. W&l Indemnity insures primary and excess hospital professional and
general (primary only) liability risks for WIH and its employees on an occurrence basis, and excess
hospital professional liability risks for Butler. W&I Indemnity insures WIH’s contractual liability
arising from employed physicians’ (as of October 1, 2017, including CNEMG obstetric related
employed physicians) and residents’ medical malpractice liability on an occurrence basis. W&
Indemnity also insures WIH'’s contractual liability (pursuant to certain Indemnification Agreements)
arising from community physicians’ medical malpractice liability on both a claims-made and
occurrence basis.

As of October 1, 2017, both Toll Gate and W&I Indemnity, on a pro-rata basis, provide excess
coverage through self-insurance and reinsurance for the System.

The VNA is a not-for-profit corporation, providing a comprehensive, multi-disciplinary, therapeutic,
hospice and public health nursing program to the residents of Rhode Island and nearby
Massachusetts. BHI receives and administers certain grant funds and provides services to elderly
and disabled residents in the local area.

Integra, a partnership of CNE and its employed physicians, participating affiliated independent
community physicians, Rhode Island Primary Care Physician Corporation and South County Health
System, is a certified Medicare Accountable Care Organization which has been operational since
2014.

The Center is the largest community-based behavioral healthcare organization in Rhode Island,
providing a continuum of counseling and supportive services to meet community mental health and
substance use disorder needs since 1969. These services include, but are not limited to, recovery
supports and centers, integrated primary care, permanent supportive housing, medication-assisted
treatment, educational and vocational counseling, wellness services and treatment to individuals
involved in the justice system. The following corporations - Grandview Realty, Grandview Second,
Nashua, and Wilson own and operate rental apartments for individuals with mental illness. TPC
Social provides Center clients with on-the-job training opportunities at Promail, a mailing and
fulfillment business. Prior to March 1, 2018, Continuum provided therapy and psychiatry services
to youth and adults. Such services are now provided through CNEMG and Butler Hospital.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”). The assets of members of the consolidated group may not be available to meet
the obligations of another member of the group.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates are made in the areas
of accounts receivable price concessions, third-party payor settlements, incurred but not reported
liabilities for medical, dental, workers’ compensation, and medical malpractice insurance, pension
and other post retirement costs and valuation of investments. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Care New England considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents. At September 30, 2021 and 2020, $18,349,089 and
$16,064,856, respectively, of cash received with donor-imposed restrictions, that is available for
current use, is included in cash and cash equivalents.

The System maintains approximately 53% and 90% at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
of its cash balance with one institution.

Short-Term Investments

Short-term investments are investment vehicles that can be readily converted to cash and are
intended to be converted or sold within a one-year time period. Short-term investments include
mutual funds that invest primarily in investment grade debt obligations and are measured at fair
value in the consolidated balance sheets. Investment income or loss (including realized and
unrealized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) is included in the excess
(deficiency) of revenues, gains and other support over expenses and losses.

Investments - Assets Whose Use Is Limited or Restricted as to Use

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in fixed
income securities are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. Investment
income or loss (including realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments, other-than-
temporary impairments in the value of securities, interest, and dividends) is included in the excess
(deficiency) of revenues, gains, and other support over expenses and losses unless the income or
loss is restricted by donor or law.

Butler, Kent, WIH, SHS and the Agency follow the practice of pooling resources of assets with and
without donor restrictions for long-term investment purposes. The investment pool is operated on
the market value method whereby each participating fund is assigned a number of units based on
the percentage of the pool it owns at the time of entry. Income, gains, and losses of the pool are
allocated to the funds based on their respective participation in the pool.

Investments at net asset value (“NAV”) (nontraditional, not readily marketable holdings) include
limited partnership interests and commingled funds. Investments at NAV generally are structured
such that the System holds an interest in the respective fund. The System’s ownership structure
does not provide for control over the related investees, and the System'’s financial risk is limited to
the carrying amount reported for each investee, in addition to any unfunded capital commitments.
There was an outstanding unfunded commitment for investments at NAV of $4,458,996 and
$4,406,482 at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Individual investment holdings within the investments at NAV include nonmarketable and market-
traded debt and equity securities, and interests in other investments at NAV. The System may be
exposed indirectly to securities lending, short sales of securities, and trading in futures and forward
contracts, options, private equity holdings, and other derivative products. Investments at NAV
often have liquidity restrictions under which the System’s capital may be divested only at specified
times. Liquidity restrictions may apply to all or portions of a particular invested amount.
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Financial information used by the System to evaluate its investments at NAV is provided by the
investment manager or general partner, and includes fair value valuations (quoted market prices
and values determined through other means) of underlying securities and other financial
instruments held by the investee, and estimates that require varying degrees of judgment. The
financial statements of the investee companies are audited annually by independent auditors,
although the timing for reporting the results of such audits does not always coincide with the
System’s annual financial statement reporting.

There is uncertainty in the valuation for investments at NAV arising from factors such as lack of

active markets (primary and secondary), lack of transparency into underlying holdings, and time
lags associated with reporting by investee companies. As a result, there is at least a reasonable
possibility that estimates will change in the near term.

Investments also include life insurance policies which are valued at the lesser of discounted value
or cash surrender value.

Income and realized net gains (losses) on investments of endowments and specific purpose funds
are reported as follows:

e Increases (decreases) in net assets with donor restrictions if the terms of the gift require that
they be added to the principal of net assets with donor restrictions;

e Increases (decreases) in net assets with donor restrictions if the terms of the gift impose
restrictions on the use of the income or the income has not yet been appropriated; or

e Increases (decreases) in net assets without donor restrictions in all other cases.

Other Receivables
Other receivables include federal and other grants receivable, indemnity programs’ premiums
receivable and other miscellaneous receivables.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted as to Use

Assets whose use is limited primarily include endowment funds, assets held by trustees under
indenture agreements and insurance programs, deferred compensation arrangements, a
representative payee account maintained by the Center for clients receiving social security income,
designated assets maintained by the Center and required by Housing and Urban Development
(“HUD”) for property maintenance, and designated assets set aside by one or more of the Boards,
over which the Boards retain control and may, at their discretion, subsequently use for other
purposes. Amounts required to meet current obligations have been reclassified to current assets.

Inventories

Inventories of drugs and supplies are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or net realizable
value. Inventories of $9,330,442 and $9,915,384 at September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
are included in other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Care New England has goodwill and had indefinite lived intangible assets that resulted from the
previous acquisitions of SHS and TPC. Goodwill totaled $24,345,364 and $24,488,975 as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The System performs an impairment assessment of
goodwill annually at the reporting unit level (the consolidated System) by comparing the estimated
fair value of the reporting unit to the carrying value of goodwill. There was no impairment charge
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on goodwill for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020. During the year ended
September 30, 2020, the System recorded a $1,080,000 loss on intangible assets in supplies and
other expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Donated property and equipment
is recorded at fair value at the date of receipt. Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the

period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those
assets. Depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life

of each class of depreciable asset, as recommended by the American Hospital Association as

follows:
Buildings and improvements 5—-40 Years
Fixed and moveable equipment 3 -20 Years

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported in net assets without
donor restrictions, and are excluded from the excess of revenues over expenses unless explicit
donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with
explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets, are reported in net assets with donor restrictions.
Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained,
expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are
placed in service.

Upon retirement or sale of assets, the cost of assets disposed of and the related accumulated
depreciation are eliminated and the related gains or losses are recognized in other revenue in the
consolidated statements of operations.

Care New England evaluates the potential impairment of property, plant and equipment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a group of assets may not

be recoverable. There was no impairment charge on property, plant and equipment for the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020.

Deferred Financing Costs

Expenses related to issuance of bonds are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis, which
approximates the effective interest rate method, over the period during which the bonds are
expected to be outstanding. Deferred financing costs are recorded as reductions to the appropriate
current and long-term portions of long-term debt on the consolidated balance sheets.
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Self-Insurance Reserves

The reserves for self-insured programs are estimated based on actuarial studies and the Hospitals’
and industry experience. The reserves include estimates of the ultimate cost for both reported
claims and claims incurred but not yet reported. The Hospitals have established separate
indemnification companies and trust funds for payment of certain self-insured claims including
medical malpractice and general liability.

CNE and its affiliated entities with employees are self-insured for losses arising from workers’
compensation claims. Loss reserves are estimated based on actuarial studies, and the System’s
and industry experience.

For the employees of CNE, Butler, Kent, WIC, SHS, the Agency, and the Center, Care New
England is self-insured for losses arising from health insurance claims. This program covers the
health insurance claims for all CNE’s, Butler’s, Kent's, WIC’s, SHS’, the Agency’s and the Center’s
employees. Self-insured losses for both reported claims and claims incurred but not yet reported
are estimated based on actuarial studies and the System’s actual experience.

For the employees of CNE, Butler, Kent, WIC, SHS, the Agency, and the Center, Care New
England is self-insured for losses arising from dental insurance claims. This program covers the
dental insurance claims for all CNE’s, Butler’s, Kent's, WIC’s, SHS’, the Agency’s and the Center’s
employees. Self-insured losses for both reported claims and claims incurred but not yet reported
are estimated based on actuarial studies and the System’s actual experience.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions include undesignated amounts as well as designated assets
maintained by the Center and required by HUD for property maintenance, and designated assets
set aside by one or more of the Boards over which the Boards retain control and may, at their
discretion, subsequently use for other purposes.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions include those whose use is limited by donor-imposed
stipulations, including some that can be fulfilled by actions of the System pursuant to those
stipulations. Additionally, net assets with donor restrictions include funds whose use is limited by
donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire with the passage of time nor can be fulfilled or
otherwise removed by the actions of the System. Investment earnings from net assets with donor
restrictions may be donor restricted for capital or operating needs depending on the original intent
of the donor.

Net assets are released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted
purposes or by occurrence of other events specified by donors. Net assets released from
restrictions and used for operations are recorded in net assets released from restriction. Net
assets released from restriction and used for capital purposes are recorded as change in net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements of changes in net assets.
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Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues, Gains, and Other Support Over Expenses and Losses

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include excess (deficiency)
of revenues, gains, and other support over expenses and losses. Changes in net assets without
donor restrictions, which are excluded from excess (deficiency) of revenues, gains, and other
support over expenses and losses, consistent with industry practice, include permanent transfers of
assets to and from affiliates for other than goods and services, contributions of long-lived assets
(including assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the
purposes of acquiring such assets), changes in the pension and postretirement liability, and
transfers to net assets with donor restrictions.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Hospitals, the Agency, and the Center have individual agreements with many third-party
payors that provide payments at amounts different from their established rates. Payment
arrangements include prospectively determined rates per discharge, per episode of care,
discounted charges, per-diem, and fee for service payments.

Net patient service revenue is reported at the transaction price estimated to reflect the total
consideration due from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered. Retroactive
adjustments are considered in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the
related services are rendered, and such amounts are adjusted in future periods as adjustments
become known, or as years are no longer subject to such adjustments.

Research Revenue
Research revenue includes revenue from federal, state and other sources for the purposes of
funding research activities.

The System receives sponsored research support from governmental and private sources. Certain
sponsored arrangements are considered exchange arrangements, and revenue under these
agreements is recognized based on the System’s fulfillment of the contract, which is typically based
on costs incurred or the achievement of milestones. Other sponsored support is considered
contribution revenue in accordance with ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting
Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions, which is recognized when any donor-
imposed conditions (if any) have been met.

Other Revenue

Other revenue includes shared savings from surpluses on at-risk arrangements, accountable entity
participation agreement milestone revenues, contract and retail pharmacy revenues, rental income,
cafeteria sales, laboratory services provided to nonpatients, sales of home medical equipment,
various services provided to physicians and other organizations, grant revenues including housing
subsidies, and gains upon the retirement or sale of assets. Revenue from these transactions is
recognized when obligations under the terms of the respective contract are satisfied. Revenue
from these transactions is measured as the amount of consideration the System expects to receive
from those goods or services. The System recognizes rental income over the lease term in
accordance with Accounting Standards Codifications (ASC) Topic 842, Leases. See Note 11.
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The composition of other revenue is as follows for the years ended September 30:

2021 2020

Professional services agreement practice revenues $ 20,113,843  $ 18,657,309
Laboratory services to non-patients 15,318,028 15,307,694
Grant revenue 24,010,731 12,735,889
Accountable care organization revenues 21,849,216 17,599,524
Contract pharmacy 19,668,507 14,930,928
Retail pharmacy 9,429,788 587,063
Professional services agreements 8,375,894 8,352,650
Home medical equipment sales 3,705,125 3,920,998
Cafeteria sales 2,229,656 2,359,422
Rental income 2,886,861 2,860,366
In-kind revenue 2,461,081 2,485,253
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,376,432 391,227
Vendor rebates 964,602 1,353,891
Other miscellaneous income 12,562,532 11,854,548

Total other revenue $ 147,952,296 $ 113,396,762

Charity Care

The System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under their charity care policies
without charge or at amounts less than established rates. Because the System does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net patient
service revenue.

Contributions and Pledges Receivable

Contributions and pledges include revenues from unconditional nonexchange agreements with
private sources and foundations. Unconditional contributions and pledges are recognized as
revenue in the period received and reported as increases in the appropriate net asset category
based on the presence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. The System has elected the
simultaneous release option for unconditional nonexchange transactions that are also subject to
purpose restrictions. Under this option, net assets without donor restrictions will include the donor-
restricted gifts and pledges whose purpose restrictions are met in the same reporting year as the
revenue is recognized.

Nonexchange agreements are considered conditional if the terms of the agreement include both a
right of return of assets received/promised and a barrier to entittement. Conditional agreements
are not recognized until the conditions and barriers on which they depend are met.

Pledges receivable after one year are discounted to their present value using an interest rate for
the year in which the promise was received and considers market and credit risk as applicable.
Allowance is made for uncollectible pledges receivable based upon management’s judgment and
analysis of the creditworthiness of the donors, past collection experience and other relevant
factors.
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Income Tax Status

Care New England, Butler, Kent, WIH, the Agency, Women & Infants Faculty Physicians, Inc.,
WIC, Women & Infants Development Foundation, Butler Hospital Foundation, Kent Hospital
Foundation, The Memorial Hospital Foundation, SHS, Memorial, Ventures, BHI, the Center,
Grandview Realty, Grandview Second, Nashua, Wilson, Standard, and TPC Social are not-for-
profit corporations, and have been recognized as tax exempt on related income pursuant to
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code). Those organizations are, therefore,
exempt from federal taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. W&I
Indemnity, Ltd. and Toll Gate Indemnity, Ltd. are foreign corporations with no material tax liability.
PCCNE and Continuum are organized as for-profit corporations and are, therefore, subject to tax.
The provision for income taxes on the earnings of PCCNE and Continuum is immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements. Other affiliates are single - member limited liability companies
which are treated as part of their sole member for tax purposes.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13 — Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) —
Disclosure Framework — Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement
(“ASU 2018-13"). The standard modified the disclosure requirements for fair value measurements,
including the consideration of costs and benefits. The following disclosures were removed from fair
value measurement: (1) amount and reasons for transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy; (2) the policy of timing between levels; and (3) the valuation process for Level 3
fair value measurements. In addition, the following disclosures are required: (1) changes in
unrealized gains and losses for the period included in other comprehensive income for recurring
Level 3 fair value measurements held at the end of the reporting period and (2) the range and
weighted average of significant unobservable inputs used to develop Level 3 fair value
measurements. The adoption of ASU 2018-13 did not have a material impact on the System’s
consolidated financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-14 — Compensation—Retirement Benefits—Defined
Benefit Plans—General (Subtopic 715-20): Disclosure Framework—Changes to the Disclosure
Requirements for Defined Benefit Plans (“ASU 2018-14"). The amendments in ASU 2018-14
modify the disclosure requirements for employers that sponsor defined benefit pension or other
postretirement plans. ASU 2018-14 added requirements for an entity to disclose the following: (1)
the weighted-average interest crediting rates used in the entity’s defined benefit plans; (2) a
narrative description of the reasons for significant gains and losses affecting the benefit obligation
for the period; (3) an explanation of any other significant changes in the benefit obligation or plan
assets. The adoption of ASU 2018-14 did not have a material impact on the System’s consolidated
financial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13 — Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments and issued subsequent amendments to
the initial guidance (collectively, Topic 326). Topic 326 replaces the existing incurred loss
impairment model with an expected credit loss model and requires a financial asset measured at
amortized cost to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected. Receivables that result
from revenue transactions under ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, are subject to
the current expected credit loss model. The ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2020, or fiscal year 2022 for the System. Early adoption is permitted. The System
does not expect the adoption to have a material impact on the System’s consolidated financial
statements.
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In January 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2017-04 —
Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment

(“ASU 2017-04"). ASU 2017-04 simplifies the test for goodwill impairment by removing Step 2 from
the goodwill impairment test. Entities will now perform the goodwill impairment test by comparing
the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount, recognizing an impairment charge for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value not to exceed the total
amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. An entity still has the option to perform the
qualitative assessment for a reporting unit to determine if the quantitative impairment test is
necessary. The ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, or fiscal year
2022 for the System. Early adoption is permitted. The System does not expect the adoption to
have a material impact on the System’s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-07 — Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958)
Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. This
amendment requires the System to report contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item
within the statement of activities and expanded reporting requirements for contributed nonfinancial
assets, such as donor-imposed restrictions, fair value measurement, and qualitative information if
the contributed nonfinancial assets were utilized or sold. The ASU is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2021, or fiscal year 2022 for the System. Early adoption is permitted. The
System is currently evaluating the impact the adoption will have on the consolidated financial
statements.

3. COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 outbreak a pandemic and
the United States federal government declared COVID-19 a national emergency. Consistent with
the State of Rhode Island and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) guidance,
the System temporarily postponed all inpatient and outpatient elective and non-essential surgical
and procedural cases, non-urgent and routine provider appointments, and some time sensitive
surgeries. The System did so to preserve personal protective equipment (“PPE”), ICU beds,
ventilators, and other needed supplies to be better positioned for a potential surge in COVID-19
patients. Additionally, the System implemented cost reduction initiatives including, but not limited
to, placing a hold on filling all nonessential open faculty and staff positions, reducing salaries for
senior leadership, furloughing certain staff, and temporarily pausing nonessential non-salary
expenditures including new capital spending.

In May 2020, after COVID-19 cases dropped significantly in the State and restrictions on elective
surgeries and procedures were lifted, Care New England embarked on a concerted effort to bring
patients back into the health care system to receive their care. With a focus on patient and
provider safety, education and the importance of receiving care, a weekly steering committee was
formed to drive initiatives and action plans aimed at increasing volume safely. This initiative was
very effective and as of September 30, 2021, patient volume returned to pre-COVID levels in most
areas.

Rhode Island regulations require that healthcare providers and healthcare workers have received a

complete series of COVID-19 vaccine by October 1, 2021. As of September 30, 2021, 99% of
Care New England’s workforce is fully vaccinated.
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On March 27, 2020, the President of the United States signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) to provide economic assistance to a wide array of
industries to ease the financial impact of COVID-19. As part of the CARES Act, CMS expanded its
Accelerated and Advance Payment Program which allows participants to receive expedited
payments during periods of national emergencies.

The System has received approximately $77.5 million and $62.4 million in 2021 and 2020,
respectively, in governmental assistance including funding under the CARES Act. This includes
recognition of approximately $37.7 million and $23.2 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively, of
grant revenue — relief funding in the statements of operations as a result of satisfying the conditions
of general grant funding under the Provider Relief Fund established by the CARES Act. The
CARES Act also designated aid for state governments to support COVID-19 efforts. A portion of
that funding was used to provide financial assistance to support the operations of hospitals in
Rhode Island through the establishment of the Rhode Island Hospital Assistance Partnership
Program (“HAPP”). The System recognized approximately $39.8 million and $39.2 million in 2021
and 2020, respectively, of grant revenue — relief funding in the statements of operations as a result
of satisfying the conditions of grant funding under HAPP. The System recognized operating
revenue related to the CARES Act provider relief funding based on information contained in laws
and regulations, as well as interpretations issued by the Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS), governing the funding that was publicly available at September 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. In 2020, the System recorded $30.0 million attributable to the Medicare Accelerated
and Advance Payment Program (the “Advances”) representing working capital financing to be
repaid through the provision of future services. In 2021, approximately $11.4 million of the
Advances were recouped. The Advances of $18.6 million and $30.0 million as of September 20,
2021 and 2020, respectively, are recorded in current portion of estimated third-party payor
settlements and advances in the consolidated balance sheets, as a payment received before
performing services.

Additionally, the CARES Act provides for payroll tax relief, including the deferral of all employer
Social Security tax payments to help employers in the face of economic hardship related to the
COVID-19 pandemic. The System deferred approximately $7.0 million and $14.5 million in 2021
and 2020, respectively, attributable the employer portion of Social Security wage taxes. The
CARES Act established the Employee Retention Credit as a fully refundable tax credit for
employers equal to fifty percent of qualified wages paid by eligible employers to their employees.
In 2021, the System recognized approximately $3.3 million of other revenue in the consolidated
statements of operations as of result of the Employee Retention Credit. Furthermore, under the
CARES Act, the due date for a plan sponsor’s required minimum contributions to a single employer
defined benefit plan for the 2020 calendar plan year was extended to January 1, 2021. A plan
sponsor that took advantage of this extension must include interest at the plan’s interest rate
calculated from the date the minimum required contribution was due to January 1, 2021. As of
September 30, 2020, the System had deferred $3.5 million of contributions to the Care New
England Pension Plan and $4.1 million of contributions to the Memorial Hospital Pension Plan for
purposes of the 2020 calendar plan year. These contribution deferrals were paid by December 31,
2020 with no interest due.
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4. Memorial Hospital Closure

Memorial Hospital had income from operations of $3,148,167 for fiscal year 2021 and a loss from
operations of $2,425,032 for fiscal year 2020.

A summary of the financial results of Memorial Hospital included in the consolidated statements of
operations for the years ended September 30 is as follows:

2021 2020
Total operating revenues $ 7,104,997 §$ 1,555,156
Total operating expenses (3,956,830) (3,980,188)
Income (Loss) from operations 3,148,167 (2,425,032)
Net nonoperating gains 1,116,147 327
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues, gains and
other support over expenses and losses 4,264,314 (2,424,705)
Transfer (1,115,996) 2,750,000
Increase in net assets without donor restrictions $ 3,148,318  $ 325,295

In fiscal year 2021 and 2020, Memorial recorded operating revenues related to changes in
estimates related to Disproportionate Share program payments under the State of Rhode Island’s
Medicaid program, the wind-down of research activities, a gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, professional services agreement revenues, and rental income from related parties that
is eliminated in consolidation.

During fiscal year 2021 and 2020, the System incurred $424,612 and $376,096 of restructuring
costs related to the closure of Memorial Hospital including legal and purchased services expenses,
respectively.

5. Net Patient Service Revenue

Patient care service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the
System expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from
patients, third-party payors (including health insurers and government programs), and others and
includes variable consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits,
reviews, and investigations. Generally, the System bills the patients and third-party payors several
days after the services are performed or the patient is discharged from the facility. Revenue is
recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
System. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual
charges incurred in relation to total expected (or actual) charges. The System believes that this
method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services over the term of the performance
obligation based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligation. Generally, performance obligations
satisfied over time relate to patients in our hospital(s) receiving inpatient acute care services or
patients receiving services in our outpatient centers or in their homes (home care). The System
measures the performance obligation from admission into the hospital, or the commencement of an
outpatient service, to the point when it is no longer required to provide services to that patient,
which is generally at the time of discharge or completion of the outpatient services. Revenue for
performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is generally recognized when goods are
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provided to our patients and customers in a retail setting (for example, pharmaceuticals and
medical equipment), the System does not believe it is required to provide additional goods or
services related to that sale.

Because all of its performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration of less than one year,
the System has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in FASB ACS 606-10-50-14a
and, therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated
to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting
period. The unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations referred to previously are
primarily related to inpatient acute care services at the end of the reporting period. The
performance obligations for these contracts are generally completed when the patients are
discharged, which generally occurs within days or weeks of the end of the reporting period.

The System determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and service
provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, discounts provided to
uninsured patients in accordance with the System’s policy, and implicit price concessions provided
to uninsured patients. The System determines its estimates of contractual adjustments and
discounts based on contractual agreements, its discount policies, and historical experience. The
System determines its estimate of implicit price concessions based on its historical collection
experience.

Agreements with third-party payors typically provide for payments at amounts less than established
charges. A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors follows:

e Medicare: Certain inpatient acute care services are paid at prospectively determined rates per
discharge based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Physician services are paid based
upon established fee schedules. Outpatient services are paid using prospectively determined
rates.

e Medicaid: Reimbursements for Medicaid services are general paid at prospectively
determined rates per discharge, or per occasion of service.

e  Other: Payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance
organizations, and preferred provider organizations provide for payment using prospectively
determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, and prospectively
determined daily rates.

Laws and regulations concerning government programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, are
complex and subject to varying interpretation. As a result of investigations by governmental
agencies, various health care organizations have received requests for information and notices
regarding alleged noncompliance with those laws and regulations, which, in some instances, have
resulted in organizations entering into significant settlement agreements. Compliance with such
laws and regulations may also be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as
significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties, and potential exclusion from the related
programs. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge the System’s
compliance with these laws and regulations, and it is not possible to determine the impact (if any)
such claims or penalties could have upon the System. In addition, the contracts the System has
with commercial payors also provide for retroactive audit and review of claims.
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Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive adjustments due to audits, reviews, or
investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the
estimated transaction price for providing patient care. These settlements are estimated based on
the terms of the payment agreement with the payors, correspondence from the payors, and the
System’s historical settlement activity, including an assessment to ensure that it is probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated
settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known (that is, new information
becomes available), or as years are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews, and
investigations. For the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, additional revenue of
$5,598,557 and $0, respectively, was recognized due to changes in estimates of implicit price
concessions, discounts, and contractual adjustments for performance obligations satisfied in prior
years.

Generally, patients who are covered by third-party payors are responsible for related deductibles
and coinsurance, which vary in amount. The System also provides services to uninsured patients,
and offers those uninsured patients a discount, either by policy or law, from standard charges. The
System estimates the transaction price for patients with deductibles and coinsurance and from
those who are uninsured based on historical experience, and current market conditions. The initial
estimate of the transaction price is determined by reducing the standard charge by any contractual
adjustments, discounts, and implicit price concessions. Subsequent changes to the estimate of the
transaction price are generally recorded as an adjustment to patient service revenue in the period
of the change.

Consistent with the System’s mission, care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to pay.
Therefore, the System has determined it has provided implicit price concessions to uninsured
patients and patients with other uninsured balances (for example, copays and deductibles). The
implicit price concessions included in estimating the transaction price represent the difference
between amounts billed to patients and the amounts the System expects to collect based on its
collection history with those patients.

Patients who meet the System’s criteria for charity care are provided care without charge or at
amounts less than established rates. Such amounts determined to qualify as charity care are not
reported as revenue.

The System has determined that the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows are affected by payor source. The composition of patient care service revenue by primary
payer for the years ended September 30 is as follows:

2021 2020

Medicare and Medicare Managed Care 31 % 30 %
Medicaid and Medicaid Managed Care 29 30
Blue Cross 22 21
Managed Care 6 8
Self-pay 1 1
Other 11 10

100 % 100 %
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6. Charity Care and Community Services

The System maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care and community
services it provides, including the amount of charges forgone for services and the estimated cost
incurred to provide those services. The revenues forgone and estimated costs and expenses
incurred to provide charity care for the years ended September 30 are as follows:

2021 2020
Revenues forgone, based on established rates $ 12,325,058 $ 12,229,479
Expenses and costs incurred 5,320,876 5,588,236

Of the System’s total expenses reported $1,232,122,762 and $1,151,897,241 in 2021 and 2020,
respectively, an estimated $5,320,876 and $5,588,236 arose during 2021 and 2020, respectively,
from providing services to charity patients. The estimated costs of providing charity services are
based on a calculation which applies a ratio of costs to charges to the gross uncompensated
charges associated with providing care to patients who qualify for charity care. The ratio of cost to
charges is calculated based on total expenses divided by gross patient service revenue. The
System did not receive significant contributions that were restricted for the care of indigent patients
during 2021 and 2020.

In addition to the above-mentioned medical care rendered, the System provides numerous other
services free of charge to the community. These services include such things as volunteer
services to other not-for-profit agencies, emergency and disaster relief services, various health,
educational, research and teaching programs, healthcare screening services, therapeutic patient
services, and provision of direct services to patients with multiple psychosocial needs. The
amounts associated with these services are as follows:

2021 2020

Approximated revenues forgone, or cost of the
services provided to the community $ 44,764,723 $ 45,769,892

The System also provides services to other indigent patients under the Medicaid/Rite Care
Program, which reimburses healthcare providers at amounts which are less than the cost of
services provided to the recipients.
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7. Pledges Receivable

Unconditional promises to give are recorded at present value as current and long-term assets
based on expected time of collection. Future expected collections of these pledges as of
September 30 are as follows:

2021 2020
Within one year $ 1,131,942  § 556,054
One to five years 1,673,931 119,328
Beyond five years 14,308 -
2,820,181 675,382
Less: Allowance for uncollectibles (94,344) (234,527)
Pledges receivable, net $ 2725837 % 440,855

A review of pledges is periodically made with regard to collectability. As a result, the allowance for
pledges that may not be collected is adjusted, and some pledges have been cancelled and are no
longer recorded in the financial statements. The U.S. Treasury Bill rate adjusted for credit risk is
used to discount pledges receivable. The discount was calculated using a rate of 0.25% for the
years ending September 30, 2021 and 2020.

As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, the System had $34,889,694 and $33,092,860, respectively,
in funding awarded but not yet expended related to conditional contributions from sponsored
support where the condition has not yet been met. Included in deferred revenue at September 30,
2021 and 2020 are $713,990 and $395,867, respectively, of sponsored receipts, that have not
been expended and cannot yet be recognized as revenue due to having a barrier and right of
return under ASU 2018-08.
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8.

Summary of Investments

Investments at September 30 are summarized as follows:

Short-Term Investments
Mutual funds

Endowment and board designated funds
Cash

Short-term investments

Fixed income securities

Equity securities

Mutual funds

Investments at NAV

Assets held under split - interest agreements
Cash surrender value of life insurance

Trustee-held funds
Cash

Short-term investments
Fixed income securities
Equity securities
Mutual funds
Investments at NAV

Deferred compensation funds
Cash
Mutual funds

Total short-term investments and assets

limited as to use

The cash surrender value of life insurance is included in Board-designated funds.
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2021 2020
$ 100,229,300 $ -
100,229,300 -
215,636 166,778
7,939,990 14,075,280
21,080,575 12,354,360
23,429,593 18,622,012
86,840,117 67,795,046
42,676,261 37,920,802
35,281,825 30,677,449
22,596,350 22,596,350
240,060,347 204,108,077
23,140,370 14,087,452
16,467,656 15,041,723
46,051,358 47,379,710
43,213,463 32,866,965
57,904,946 54,556,501
26,269,676 20,379,759
213,047,469 184,312,110
- 40,000
1,889,016 1,469,048
1,889,016 1,509,048

$ 555,226,132

$ 389,929,235
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Investment income and gains for the years ended September 30 consisted of the following:

2021 2020
Investment return on net assets without donor restrictions
Interest and dividend income $ 3,622,551 $ 3,896,684
Net realized gains on sales of investments 11,355,032 7,750,755
Net change in unrealized gains 30,164,020 7,768,798

45,141,603 19,416,237
Included in operating revenue (8,546) (7,846)
Included in nonoperating revenue 45,150,149 19,424,083

45,141,603 19,416,237
Changes in net assets with donor restrictions
Interest and dividend income 373,526 472,830
Net realized gains on sales of investments 2,664,920 878,591
Net change in unrealized gains 5,732,931 1,319,195
Changes in beneficial interest in assets held at community foundation 373,368 30,606
Changes in beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 4,231,007 1,355,912

13,375,752 4,057,134

$ 58,517,355 § 23,473,371

The cost and estimated fair value of securities, which excludes beneficial interest in perpetual
trusts of $35,281,825 and $30,677,449, as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and
excludes cash surrender value of life insurance of $22,596,350, as of September 30, 2021 and
2020, and includes long-term investments as follows:

2021
Gross
Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Fair Value

Short-term Investments

Mutual Funds $ 100,126,905 $ 102,395 $ 100,229,300
$ 100,126,905 $ 102,395 $ 100,229,300
Endowment and board designated funds
Cash $ 215636 $ -3 215,636
Short-term investments 7,939,990 - 7,939,990
Fixed income securities 21,022,266 58,309 21,080,575
Equity securities 18,229,005 5,200,588 23,429,593
Mutual funds 59,491,507 27,348,610 86,840,117
Investments at NAV 28,754,850 13,921,411 42,676,261

$ 135,653,254 § 46,528,918 $ 182,182,172

Trustee-held funds

Cash $ 23,140,370 $ - $ 23,140,370
Short-term investments 16,467,656 - 16,467,656
Fixed income securities 45,140,711 910,647 46,051,358
Equity securities 27,510,460 15,703,003 43,213,463
Mutual funds 47,332,050 10,572,896 57,904,946
Investments at NAV 18,031,203 8,238,473 26,269,676

$ 177,622,450 § 35425019 § 213,047,469

Deferred compensation funds
Mutual funds 1,765,964 123,052 1,889,016

$ 1,765,964 $ 123,052 § 1,889,016
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2020
Gross
Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Fair Value
Endowment and board designated funds
Cash $ 166,778  $ -8 166,778
Short-term investments 14,075,280 - 14,075,280
Fixed income securities 11,978,060 376,300 12,354,360
Equity securities 17,015,633 1,506,379 18,522,012
Mutual funds 51,744,600 16,050,446 67,795,046
Investments at NAV 31,060,742 6,860,060 37,920,802

$ 126,041,093 §$ 24,793,185 § 150,834,278

Trustee-held funds

Cash $ 14,087,452  $ - % 14,087,452
Short-term investments 15,041,723 - 15,041,723
Fixed income securities 45,461,776 1,917,934 47,379,710
Equity securities 23,832,975 9,033,990 32,866,965
Mutual funds 47,315,845 7,240,656 54,556,501
Investments at NAV 17,860,977 2,518,782 20,379,759

$ 163,600,748 $ 20,711,362 $ 184,312,110

Deferred compensation funds

Cash $ 40,000 $ - 3 40,000
Mutual funds 1,458,837 10,211 1,469,048
$ 1,498,837 § 10,211 § 1,509,048

The System reviews its investments to identify those for which fair value is below cost. The
System then makes a determination as to whether the investment should be considered other than-
temporarily impaired. During 2021 and 2020, there were no significant losses related to declines in
value that were considered other-than-temporary in nature.

9. Liquidity and Funds Available for General Expenditure

As part of the System’s liquidity management strategy, the System structures its financial assets to
be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. The System
regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet it operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of it available funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the System considers all expenditures related to its ongoing mission-related activities, as
well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities, to be general expenditures.

The following reflects the System’s financial assets as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, reduced
by amounts not available for general use because of contractual or donor-imposed restrictions or
internal designations within one year of the balance sheet date. Amounts not available include
amounts set aside for long-term investing in board-designated funds that could be drawn upon if
the Board of Directors approves the action. However, amounts already appropriated from donor
restricted endowment for general expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date have not
been subtracted as unavailable.
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10.

2021 2020
Financial assets at September 30
Cash and cash equivalents 18,717,659 $ 133,131,336
Short-term investments 100,229,300 -
Patient accounts receivable 108,447,566 99,992,705
Other receivables 35,602,720 27,138,352
Pledges receivable, net 2,725,837 450,855
Endowment funds 83,737,351 71,723,926
Board-designated funds 156,322,996 132,384,151
Trustee-held funds 213,047,469 184,312,110
Deferred compensation funds 1,889,016 1,509,048
Total financial assets 720,719,914 650,642,483
Less amounts not available
Donor restricted funds 18,349,089 16,064,856
Other receivables 10,727,196 11,692,504
Pledges receivable, net 1,673,466 119,328
Endowment funds 83,203,729 71,213,630
Board-designated funds 156,322,996 132,384,151
Trustee-held funds 213,047,469 184,312,110
Deferred compensation funds 1,889,016 1,509,048
Financial assets not available to be used within one year 485,212,961 417,295,627

Financial assets available to meet general

expenditures within one year $ 235506953 $ 233,346,856

CNE, Butler, Kent, SHS, WIC, Integra, the Agency, and as of January 1, 2019, the Center routinely
invest their surplus operating funds in various overnight repurchase agreements, money market
funds, and fixed income U.S. agency bonds, which are classified as cash and cash equivalents.
Additionally, in 2021, CNE invested surplus operating funds in mutual funds that invest primarily in
investment grade debt obligations that can be readily converted to cash. These funds are included
in short-term investments in the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2021. Investment
decisions are made based on anticipated liquidity needs, such that financial assets are available for
general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.

Property, Plant and Equipment

A summary of property, plant and equipment at September 30 follows:

2021 2020

Land $ 6,475,602 $ 7,162,575
Land improvements 10,239,251 10,812,937
Buildings and improvements 471,576,661 469,759,693
Moveable equipment 291,600,194 280,781,078
Total property, plant and equipment 779,891,708 768,516,283

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (555,541,969) (535,215,821)
224,349,739 233,300,462

Construction and projects in progress 6,182,349 7,018,847

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 230,532,088 $ 240,319,309
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1.

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $31,181,265 and $29,640,134 for the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which includes $29,690,689 and $28,891,455
depreciation expense of property, plant and equipment, and $1,490,576 and $748,679 amortization
expense of finance lease right-of-use assets, respectively. Depreciation and amortization expense
of property, plant and equipment, with donor restrictions, amounted to $118,846 for the years
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020.

Care New England had property, plant and equipment disposals of $11,105,037 and $2,592,839
with accumulated depreciation of $9,483,387 and $2,442,465 for the years ended September 30,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

As of September 30, 2021, the System estimated the total cost of completion of construction and
projects in progress to be approximately $11,055,122. The funding to complete these projects will
come from philanthropic donations, operating cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments.

Butler owns approximately 110 acres of land, which was purchased with donated funds in the mid-
19th century. This land has a book value of one dollar.

In the late 1940s, Kent acquired 57 acres of land, which is recorded at the acquisition price of
$90,165.

Conditional asset retirement obligations are recorded at $2,959,145 and $6,011,745 as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These obligations are recorded in other noncurrent
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. There are no assets that are legally restricted for
purposes of settling asset retirement obligations. During 2021, there were $3,226,003 retirement
obligations relieved when of a portion of the main campus of Memorial Hospital was sold. During
2020, there were no significant retirement obligations incurred or settled. Accretion expense of
$173,403 and $248,161 was recorded during the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Lease Commitments

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 (Topic 842) Leases. Topic 842 supersedes the
lease requirements in Accounting Standards Codification Topic 840, Leases. Under Topic 842,
lessees are required to recognize assets and liabilities on the balance sheets for most leases and
provide enhanced disclosures. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating.

The System adopted Topic 842 effective October 1, 2019. The System applied Topic 842 to all
leases as of October 1, 2019. We have elected the practical expedient package to not reassess at
adoption (i) expired or existing contracts for whether they are or contain a lease, (ii) the lease
classification of any existing leases or (iii) initial indirect costs for existing leases. With the
exception of leases that include the purchase of consumables, we have also elected the policy
exemption that allows lessees to choose to not separate lease and non-lease components by class
of underlying asset and are applying this expedient to all relevant asset classes.

The System determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. Our
right-of-use assets represent our right to use the underlying assets for the lease term and our lease
liabilities represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the leases. Right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of
lease payments over the lease term. We use the implicit rate noted within the contract. If not
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readily available, we use our estimated incremental borrowing rate, which is derived using a
collateralized borrowing rate for the same currency and term as the associated lease. The leases
standard requires us to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a lease
term longer than 12 months. We have elected not to record leases with a term of 12 months or
less on the balance sheets.

Our operating leases are primarily for real estate, including certain acute care facilities, off-campus
outpatient facilities, medical office buildings, and corporate and other administrative offices, and
medical equipment. Our real estate lease agreements typically have initial terms of three to
twenty-five years. These real estate leases may include one or more options to renew, with
renewals that can extend the lease term from one to ten years. The exercise of lease renewal
options is at our sole discretion. When determining the lease term, we included options to extend
or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain at commencement that we will exercise that
option.

The components of lease expense for the year ended September 30 are as follows:

2021 2020

Operating lease cost $ 13,911,418  §$ 14,380,049
Variable and short-term lease cost 974,209 1,368,971
Total lease cost $ 14,885,627 $ 15,749,020

Finance lease cost
Amortization of finance lease right-of-use assets $ 1,490,576 $ 748,679
Interest on finance lease liabilities 157,535 102,398
Total finance lease cost $ 1,648,111 $ 851,077

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases for the year ended September 30 is as

follows:
2021 2020
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 13,124,906 $ 12,905,715
Operating cash flows from finance leases 146,168 73,062
Financing cash flows from finance leases 1,537,029 885,295
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations
Operating leases $ 101,431,893 $ 103,465,424
Finance leases 8,981,934 4,764,798

Included in the $103,465,424 of right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for operating lease
obligations is $5,803,465 of new and modified operating leases entered into during the year ended
September 30, 2020. Included in the $4,764,798 of right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for
finance lease obligations is $3,144,220 of new and modified finance leases entered into during the
year ended September 30, 2020.
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Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases as of September 30 is as follows:

2021 2020
Operating Leases
Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 101,431,893 $ 103,465,424
Asset lease expense 9,756,781 10,237,918
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net $ 91,675,112 % 93,227,506
Current portion of operating lease liabilities $ 9,129,999 $ 7,881,816
Long-term operating lease liabilities 88,934,655 90,949,257
Total operating lease liabilities $ 98,064,654 $ 98,831,073
Finance Leases
Finance lease right-of-use assets $ 8,981,934 §$ 4,764,798
Accumulated amortization 2,838,747 1,361,024
Finance lease right-of-use assets, net $ 6,143,187 $ 3,403,774
Current portion of finance lease liabilities $ 1,857,954 $ 1,248,883
Long-term finance lease liabilities 4,045,905 1,950,647
Total finance lease liabilities $ 5,903,859 § 3,199,530
Weighted Average remaining lease term
Operating leases 13.52 years 14.60 years
Finance leases 3.83 years 2.99 years
Weighted Average discount rate
Operating leases 4.24 % 4.24 %
Finance leases 3.46 % 3.42 %

Future maturities of lease liabilities as of September 30, 2021 are as follows:

Operating Finance

Leases Leases
2022 $ 13,032,389 $ 2,027,502
2023 11,599,430 1,670,532
2024 10,185,830 1,150,751
2025 9,620,208 957,479
2026 8,103,341 314,450
Later years 79,445,502 186,535
Total lease payments 131,986,700 6,307,249
Less: Imputed interest 33,922,046 403,390

$ 98,064,654 § 5,903,859

Topic 842 also addresses accounting for leases of lessors. The System has entered into ground
leases for land on the campus of Butler and Kent. The ground lease agreements have initial terms
of fifty-two to sixty years. One of these leases includes two options to renew, with renewals that
extend the lease term by ten years. There are no options for the lessee to purchase the underlying
asset at the end of the lease term. There are no variable lease payments. The book value of land
at Butler and Kent is not material. Refer to Note 10 for details on book value of land. These leases
are classified as operating leases and the related income is recorded in other operating revenue.
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The System also leases a small amount of excess office and medical space to outside

organizations. These leases are classified as operating leases and the related income is recorded
in other operating revenue.

Future maturities of lease payments, showing the undiscounted cash flows to be received on an
annual basis as of September 30, 2021 are as follows:

2021

2022 $ 2,128,267
2023 1,908,133
2024 1,833,101
2025 1,660,600
2026 1,674,142
Later years 44,640,813

Total lease payments $ 53,845,056

Total rental income for operating leases for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
amounted to $2,886,861 and $2,860,366, respectively.

12. Long-Term Debt

A summary of long-term debt at September 30 is as follows:

2021 2020
Fixed rate $138,265,000 RIHEBC 2016 Series B Bonds, final
maturity in 2036 $ 120,125,000 $ 125,750,000
Fixed rate $21,610,000 RIHEBC 2016 Series C Taxable Notes, final
maturity in 2046 21,610,000 21,610,000
Term, $445,400 U.S. Dept of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
mortgage note, final maturity in 2023 79,803 112,994
Term, $4,000,000 Time Insurance Company mortgage note,
final maturity in 2027 2,462,021 2,617,678
Term, $1,600,000 Seavest Healthcare Properties, LLC note,
final maturity in 2030 1,097,806 1,197,866
Term, $3,493,907 US Bank loan, final maturity in 2024 2,094,052 2,737,379
Term, $3,500,000 101 Plain, LLC, final maturity in 2031 3,276,731 -
Unamortized premium 9,756,728 10,407,176
Unamortized discount (282,334) (338,801)
Unamortized debt issuance costs (1,970,685) (2,125,647)
Total long-term debt 158,249,122 161,968,645
Less: Current portion of long-term debt (7,582,585) (6,996,255)
Long-term debt excluding current portion $ 150,666,537 $ 154,972,390
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Rhode Island Health and Educational Building Corporation (RIHEBC) Bonds

In 2016, the System issued RIHEBC 2016 Series B fixed rate bonds of $138,265,000 (excluding a
premium of $13,008,969). The bonds have annual mandatory sinking fund redemptions ranging
from $5,905,000 in 2022 to $7,180,000 in 2026, a payment of $41,660,000 in 2031, and a final
payment of $45,825,000 in 2036. The bonds bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.0%. A debt service
reserve fund of $11,916,261 is included in trustee-held funds in the consolidated balance sheet at
September 30, 2021. CNE, Butler, Kent, VNA, SHS, The Memorial Hospital (prior to December 22,
2017), TPC, WIC, WIH, collectively, the Obligated Group, are jointly and severally liable for
repayment. The Obligated Group is required to comply with certain debt covenants under the bond
agreements, including a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.1 to 1, effective in fiscal 2018
and all subsequent fiscal years, and days cash on hand of 30, effective in fiscal 2017 and all
subsequent fiscal years. As of September 30, 2021, the System is in compliance with the bond
covenants. As of September 30, 2020, the System obtained a suspension of the debt service
coverage ratio requirement for fiscal 2020. The System was in compliance with bond covenants as
of September 30, 2020.

The proceeds from the CNE 2016 Series B Bonds were used to (i) refund the outstanding CNE
2010 Bonds, and (ii) refund a portion of the outstanding CNE 2013 A Bonds, and (iii) refund a
portion of the outstanding CNE 2014 A Bonds, and (iv) refund the outstanding CNE 2016 A Bonds,
and (v) refund the outstanding TPC 2013 Bonds, and (vi) pay certain expenses related to the
issuance of the 2016 Series B Bonds.

In 2016, the System issued RIHEBC 2016 Series C fixed rate taxable notes of $21,610,000
(excluding a discount of $564,669). The notes have mandatory interest-only payments of $594,275
every March and September from 2019 through 2026, and a final principal payment of $21,610,000
in 2026. The notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.5%. The Obligated Group is jointly and
severally liable for repayment. The Obligated Group is required to comply with certain debt
covenants under the bond agreements, including a minimum debt service coverage ratio of 1.1 to
1, effective in fiscal 2018 and all subsequent fiscal years, and days cash on hand of 30, effective in
fiscal 2017 and all subsequent fiscal years. As of September 30, 2021, the System is in
compliance with the bond covenants. As of September 30, 2020, the System obtained a
suspension of the debt service coverage ratio requirement for fiscal 2020. The System was in
compliance with bond covenants as of September 30, 2020.

The proceeds from the CNE 2016 Series C Taxable Notes were used to (i) refund a portion of the
outstanding CNE 2013 A Bonds, and (ii) refund a portion of the outstanding CNE 2014 A Bonds,
and (iii) refund certain outstanding taxable indebtedness incurred by TPC, and (iv) pay certain
expenses related to the issuance of the 2016 Series C Bonds.

Bank Mortgage and Other Notes

In 2007, the System entered into a $4,000,000 mortgage note with Time Insurance Company due
October 2007 through September 2027. Interest and principal installments of $25,261 are due
monthly, with a final payment of $1,338,527 due September 2027, at a fixed interest rate of 5.79%.
The note is collateralized by the real estate purchased.

In 2015, Kent entered into a lease amendment with Seavest Healthcare Partners, LLC (“Seavest”).
The 2015 amendment to the December 17, 2010 Tenant Space Lease agreement between the
landlord, Seavest, and Kent for medical space located on Kent's campus, includes a $1,600,000
note, due March 2016 through February 2030. Funds from this note were received by Kent in
February and April 2016. Interest and principal installments of $13,582 are due monthly at an
imputed interest rate of 5.46%.
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In 2020, CNE entered into a $3,493,907 loan agreement with US Bank due April 2020 through
April 2024. Interest and principal installments of $756,529 are due annually, at a fixed interest rate
of 4.14%. The loan is collateralized by the medical equipment purchased.

In 2021, WIH entered into a lease amendment with 101 Plain, LLC (“101 Plain”). The 2021
amendment to the February 11, 2010 lease agreement between the landlord, 101 Plain, and WIH
for medical space located nearby to WIH's campus, includes a $3,500,000 note, due

November 2020 through October 2030. Funds from this note of $3,261,664 were received by WIH
during 2021. The remaining funds from this note of $238,336 will be used in 2022 for (i) the
reimbursement of additional project expenditures and (ii) unused funds will be applied towards the
principal balance of the note. Interest and principal installments of $41,546 are due monthly at an
imputed interest rate of 7.50%.

Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt are as follows for the years ended

September 30:
2022 $ 7,143,565
2023 7,505,817
2024 7,851,786
2025 7,487,993
2026 29,482,041
Thereafter 91,274,211
150,745,413
Plus: Unamortized premium on bonds 9,756,728
Less: Unamortized discount on bonds (282,334)
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs (1,970,685)

$ 158,249,122

13. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restriction of $233,055,263 and $130,942,624 as of September 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively, include board-designated funds and are held at the direction of the Board
of Directors once an action for spending is approved. The remaining funds are not restricted in
nature and can be used for operations.

Board-designated funds at September 30 are summarized as follows:

2021 2020

Board designated funds
General purposes $ 126,681,167 $ 103,908,743
Cash surrender value of life insurance 22,596,350 22,596,350
Plant replacement and expansion 5,439,572 4,475,916
Healthcare research 1,144,555 941,790
Other 461,352 461,352

Total board designated funds $ 156,322,996 $ 132,384,151
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Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes at September 30:

2021 2020
Subject to expenditure for specified purpose
Healthcare services $ 4928834 $ 3,913,941
Healthcare research 4,098,651 3,405,379
General purposes 9,326,283 7,732,924
Health education 3,910,573 3,404,939
Plant replacement and expansion 35,723,031 28,934,707
Other 8,709,518 8,109,491
66,696,890 55,501,381
Subject to the Health System'’s policy and appropriation
Investment in perpetuity, the income of which is expendable to support
Healthcare services 6,528,009 5,533,288
Healthcare research 929,294 787,725
General purposes 19,797,890 16,714,631
Indigent care 8,947,525 7,583,653
Health education 2,216,454 1,882,529
38,419,172 32,501,826
Not subject to appropriation or expenditure
Residential buildings to provide housing for low-income individuals
with chronic mental illness 2,551,325 2,670,171
Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 107,667,387 $ 90,673,378

The System follows the requirements of the Rhode Island enacted version of the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006 as they relate to its donor restricted endowment
funds. The System’s endowments consist of numerous individual funds established for a variety of
purposes. Its endowments consist solely of donor restricted endowment funds. As required by
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds are
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions.

The System classifies restricted donor funds in accordance with the laws of the State of Rhode
Island and generally accepted accounting principles. The System classifies as donor restricted
endowment funds of perpetual durations (1) the original value of the contributions made to the
endowment, (2) the original value of subsequent contributions made to the endowment, and (3)
accumulations to the endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. Specific purpose restricted funds,
include any donor restricted endowments that are not perpetual in nature, are appropriated in
accordance with donor intent. The System considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and
preservation of the fund, (2) the purpose of the System and the donor restricted endowment fund,
(3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected
total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the System,
and (7) the investment policies of the System.
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The System’s endowment net asset composition by fund type is as follows:

2021 2020
Donor restricted endowment funds
Original donor restricted gift amount and amounts to be
maintained in perpetuity by donor $ 13,212,267 $ 13,191,691
Accumulated investment gains 35,243,259 27,854,786
48,455,526 41,046,477
Assets held under split-interest agreements 35,281,825 30,677,449
Total donor restricted endowment funds 83,737,351 71,723,926
Specific purpose restricted funds 21,378,711 16,279,281
Specific purpose restricted funds - property, plant and equipment 2,551,325 2,670,171
Total specific purpose restricted funds 23,930,036 18,949,452
Total funds $ 107,667,387 $ 90,673,378

For the year ended September 30, the System had the following changes in the endowment net

assets:
2021 2020

Endowment net assets at beginning of year $ 41,046,477 $ 39,662,058
Investment return, net 8,771,377 2,670,616
Contributions 20,575 6,700
Transfer to net assets without donor restrictions - 75,683
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure (1,382,903) (1,368,580)
Endowment net assets at end of year $ 48,455,526 $ 41,046,477

The System’s net assets with donor restrictions consist of endowments managed by the System.
Unless otherwise directed by the donor, gifts received for endowments are invested in accordance
with the System’s investment policy. In order to preserve the real value of a donor’s gift and to
sustain funding consistent with donor intent, the annual appropriation rate is set to strike a
reasonable balance between long-term objectives of preserving and growing each endowment fund
for the future of providing stable, annual appropriations. The annual appropriation rate for Butler,
Kent, Kent Hospital Foundation and WIH was 4% for the years ending September 30, 2021 and
2020. There were no appropriations made from Memorial for the years ending September 30,
2021 and 2020.

The System has adopted endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the
purchasing power of endowment assets. Under this policy, the return objective for the endowment
assets, measured over a full market cycle, shall be to maximize the return with a balanced growth
emphasis based on the endowment’s target allocation applied to the appropriate individual
benchmarks.

It is the policy of the System that any appropriations from the appreciation in endowment funds are
periodically requested of and approved by the Board of Directors.
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The Board of Directors has responsibility for formulating investment policies. The investment policy
is to invest in a conservative asset portfolio with minimal investment risk. Certain funds are
included in a consolidated long-term investment pool and invested in accordance with the
investment strategy, authorized by the Board of Directors.

In addition to donor restricted endowments, Kent, Memorial Hospital and WIH are income
beneficiaries of various trusts. On September 30, 2021 and 2020, the market value of Kent's,
WIH'’s and Memorial Hospital’s trust assets totaled $33,345,740 and $29,114,732, respectively. In
addition to donor restricted endowments, the Center is the income beneficiary of various assets
held at a community foundation. On September 30, 2021 and 2020, the market value of the
Center’s assets held at the community foundation totaled $1,936,085 and $1,562,717, respectively.
Distributions of income are made at the discretion of the Board.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the System to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration. Deficiencies of this nature that are reported in net assets with donor restrictions are
immaterial as of September 30, 2021 and 2020. These deficiencies resulted from unfavorable
market fluctuations. The individual donor restricted endowment funds with deficiencies will retain
future income and appreciation to restore the required fair value of the assets.

During fiscal 2021 and 2020, net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring
expenses satisfying the following restricted purposes:

2021 2020
Purpose restrictions accomplished
Healthcare services $ 765,073 $ 694,404
Healthcare research 626,632 375,143
Other 978,434 1,126,699
Health education 48,713 70,484
Indigent care 640 -
2,419,492 2,266,730
Property, plant and equipment acquired and placed in service 1,164,334 1,929,102
Release of appropriated endowment amounts with purpose
restrictions 1,073,882 1,052,133
Total restrictions released $ 4,657,708 $ 5,247,965

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Wilson received funding from HUD of $1,152,335 for the purchase and renovation of Wilson Street
apartments. The agreement states that repayment is not required provided that the property
funded remains available only to qualified clients for a period of not less than 40 years, maturing in
2047. If at any time during the restricted use period Wilson is unable to meet the provisions of the
agreement, at the option of the funding source, the entire amount of the above noted funding shall
become due and payable upon default.
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14.

Grandview Second received funding from HUD of $1,173,200 for the renovation of Grandview
Second apartments. The agreement states that repayment is not required provided that the
property funded remains available only to qualified clients for a period of not less than 40 years,
maturing in 2035. If at any time during the restricted use period Grandview Second is unable to
meet the provisions of the agreement, at the option of the funding source, the entire amount of the
above noted funding shall become due and payable upon default.

Nashua received funding from HUD of $834,200 for the renovation of Nashua Street apartments.
The agreement states that repayment is not required provided that the property funded remains
available only to qualified clients for a period of not less than 40 years, maturing in 2040. If at any
time during the restricted use period Nashua is unable to meet the provisions of the agreement, at
the option of the funding source, the entire amount of the above noted funding shall become due
and payable upon default.

State Bond Funds

Wilson received $670,413 in funding from the Rhode Island Housing and Mortgage Finance
Corporation (“Rhode Island Housing”) for the purchase and renovation of the Wilson Street
apartments. Under the terms of the agreement, if Wilson Street apartments should cease to be
utilized as a facility to be rented by qualified clients before 2047 (40 years after the first rental unit
to a client or two years from the date of the grant), Rhode Island Housing would be entitled to
recover either the amount expended under the agreement or a prorated portion of the fair market
value of the building, whichever is greater. Management intends to use the facility for the stated
purpose and duration of the agreement.

Wilson received $240,000 in funding from the State of Rhode Island Housing Resources
Commission Neighborhood Opportunities Program for 10 units of permanent supportive housing.
The terms of the agreement state that no repayment of the funding is required provided Wilson
operates the facility in compliance with the terms of the agreement for a period of 20 years. If
Wilson does not operate in compliance with the affordability provision in accordance with the terms
of the contract for a minimum of 20 years following the date of initial occupancy, the entire amount
of the funds disbursed must be repaid. For each year after year 10, Wilson’s repayment amount
will be reduced by 10% per year in which the units have been used for the project. Management
intends to use the facility for the stated purpose and duration of the agreement.

Retirement Plans

The System has two separate Defined Benefit pension plans. One plan covers the employees of
CNE, Butler, Kent, WIC, and the Agency, with the exception of the unionized employees of WIH
(who are covered under a multiemployer union plan), and certain employed physicians. The
second plan covers substantially all of the employees of Memorial. The System had a third
Defined Benefit pension plan, the Kent County Visiting Nurse Association Pension Plan, which
covered the employees of the Agency, but merged the assets of the Agency’s plan into the Care
New England Pension Plan as of December 31, 2016.
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Care New England Pension Plan

The Care New England Pension Plan (the “Plan”), established on October 1, 1998, is a defined
benefit cash balance plan that covers all of the employees of CNE, and all of the employees of
Butler, Kent, WIC, and the Agency, with the exception of the unionized employees at WIH and
certain employed physicians. The benefits for the unionized employees at Butler are computed
under a separate formula that was in effect when the Butler plan was a standalone noncontributory
defined benefit plan. Butler, Kent, WIC and the Agency incur and fund their respective pension
plan expenses within the guidelines established by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
of 1974.

The Care New England Board of Directors voted, on September 23, 2010, to freeze the Plan
effective December 31, 2010 for all employees with the exception of the Butler unionized
employees. Effective December 31, 2010, compensation paid to a participant shall be disregarded
for plan purposes, except for purposes related to determining benefits for the unionized employees
at Butler. In addition, a participant’s cash balance account will only increase annually for interest
credit. In connection with the Plan freeze, the System enhanced contributions to the Care New
England 403(b) Match and Savings Plan.

Included in cumulative changes in net assets without donor restrictions at September 30, 2021 and
2020 that has not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost is an actuarial loss of
$51,466,811 and $94,114,207, respectively.

The actuarial loss included as cumulative changes in net assets without donor restrictions and
expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the fiscal year ended September 30,
2021 is $993,507.

Net periodic pension cost includes the following components at September 30:

2021 2020
Service cost $ 4333906 $ 3,358,731
Interest cost 6,191,428 6,554,935
Expected return on plan assets (8,436,731) (7,155,720)
Amortization of loss 2,430,363 2,038,853
Net periodic pension expense $ 4518966 $ 4,796,799

The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended September 30 are

as follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate 2.76 % 3.13 %
Expected return on assets 6.00 6.00
Rate of compensation increase 3.00 3.00
Weighted-average interest crediting rate 4.00 4.00
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The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the plan
projected benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, funded status, and amounts recognized in
net assets without donor restrictions of the plan as of September 30:

2021 2020
Changes in benefit obligations
Projected benefit obligations at beginning of year $ 232,293,041 $ 218,020,122
Service cost 4,333,906 3,358,731
Interest cost 6,191,428 6,554,935
Actuarial (gain) loss (7,512,797) 16,604,076
Benefits and expenses paid (6,259,983) (12,244,823)
Settlements (35,233,808) -
Projected benefit obligations at end of year 193,811,787 232,293,041
Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 176,933,381 167,228,457
Actual return on plan assets 31,784,526 10,249,747
Employer contributions 8,100,000 11,700,000
Benefits and expenses paid (6,259,983) (12,244,823)
Settlements (35,233,808) -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 175,324,116 176,933,381
Funded status
Total long-term pension liability $ 18,487,671 $ 55,359,660

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 190,554,708 $ 229,108,439
Amounts recognized in net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets without donor restrictions at beginning of year $ 94,114,207 $ 82,643,011
Amounts amortized during the year

Net loss (2,430,363) (2,038,853)
Amounts occurring during the year

Net (gain) loss (30,860,592) 13,510,049
Amounts recognized due to curtailment/settlement

Net loss (9,356,441) -

Net assets without donor restrictions at end of year $ 51,466,811 $ 94,114,207

During 2021, the System purchased annuities for a subset of retirees and beneficiaries, in the Care
New England Pension Plan, with small monthly benefit amounts, therefore removing their benefit
obligation from the Plan and triggering a settlement event. The Plan settlement incorporated both
an annuity purchase settling approximately 800 retirees as well as regular lump sums paid out over
the fiscal year. Approximately $27 million in projected benefit obligation was settled from the
annuity purchase and approximately $8 million was settled via regular lump sums paid out. As a
result of these actions, a settlement charge of approximately $9.3 million was incurred. This
equates to approximately 15% of the pre-settlement accumulated other comprehensive income
recognized immediately through pension expense.
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The assumptions used to develop the projected benefit obligation as of September 30 are as

follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate 2.95 % 2.76 %
Rate of compensation increase 3.00 3.00
Weighted-average interest crediting rate 4.00 4.00

Plan Assets

The Plan’s investment objectives are to achieve long-term growth in excess of inflation, and to
provide a rate of return that meets or exceeds the actuarial expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets. In order to minimize risk, the Plan attempts to minimize the variability in yearly
returns. The Plan diversifies its holdings among sectors, industries, and companies. No more than
6% of the Plan’s portfolio (measured on market value) may be held in an individual company’s

stocks or bonds.

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption, the System
considered the historical return and the future expectations for returns for each asset class, as well

as the target asset allocation of the pension portfolio.

The System’s pension plan asset allocations (based on market value) at September 30, by asset
category, are as follows:

Target Actual Actual
Allocation 2021 2020
Asset category
Cash and cash equivalents 0% 2% 3%
Investments at NAV 45 45 44
Fixed income securities 35 34 28
Equity securities 20 19 25
100 % 100 % 100 %

Refer to Note 24 for details on assets held by the Plan.

Contributions
The System contributed $8,100,000 and $11,700,000 to the Plan in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The System expects to contribute $4,600,000 to the Plan in 2022.
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected

to be paid:

Pension
Fiscal Year Benefits
2022 $ 13,142,195
2023 13,820,877
2024 13,698,026
2025 12,870,766
2026 12,395,219
Years 2027-2031 56,056,228

$ 121,983,311

Care New England 403(b) Match and Savings Plan

Effective January 1, 2009, the Pension Plan Protection legislation resulted in regulatory changes
which discontinued the matching credits to the participants that were previously recorded in the
CNE Pension Plan. As a result, CNE established the Care New England 403(b) Plan to account
for future matching credits. The plan covers employees that meet certain eligibility requirements.
Additionally, effective January 1, 2011, in connection with the freeze of the Care New England
Pension Plan, the System also provides a nonelective contribution to participant accounts, as
defined in the Plan document. Nonelective contributions are allocated to each eligible participant
hired prior to January 1, 2013 based on a percentage of salary and a combination of the recipients’
age and years of service or service only. Nonelective contributions are allocated to each eligible
participant hired on or after January 1, 2013 equal to 3 percent of compensation. Effective
January 1, 2015, employees of Memorial Hospital are eligible for the Plan and are eligible for a
nonelective contribution equal to 3 percent of compensation. Effective January 1, 2017, employees
of the Center are eligible for the Plan and are eligible for a nonelective contribution equal to 3
percent of compensation. Nonelective contributions are credited to each such participant as of the
first day of the Plan year, as further described in the Plan document.

The System recorded an expense of $14,491,464 and $14,789,584 for the nonelective contribution
to participant accounts for the fiscal years that ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
In addition, the System recorded an expense of $4,387,370 and $4,550,162 for matching credits for
fiscal years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The System will fund the 2020
expense and the 2021 expense by the required deadline for depositing core contributions of

July 15, 2022 and 2023, respectively. The System recorded a pension liability at September 30,
2021 and 2020 of $28,001,787 and $33,382,214, respectively.

Kent County Visiting Nurse Association Pension Plan

The Agency had a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all employees who
satisfied certain eligibility requirements that was frozen effective December 31, 2007 and replaced
with a contributory retirement savings plan. Benefits under the defined benefit plan were based on
years of service and employee’s compensation levels. Effective December 31, 2016, the Kent
County Visiting Nurse Association Pension Plan assets were combined with the Care New England
Pension Plan.
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Effective January 1, 2008, the Agency established a 403(b) Retirement Savings Plan that covers
employees who have met certain eligibility requirements. Discretionary contributions to the plan
are based on years of service and compensation levels. For the fiscal years that ended
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, the Agency recorded an expense of $455,629 and
$549,532. The Agency recorded a pension liability at September 30, 2021 and 2020 of $151,708
and $140,125, respectively.

Memorial Retirement Plan

As part of the acquisition of SHS, CNE acquired the assets and assumed the liabilities for Memorial
Hospital's defined benefit pension plan (“the Memorial Plan”), which was frozen for non-union
participants as of May 31, 2012 and union employees as of June 1, 2013 and was replaced by the
Memorial 403(b) Match and Savings Plan. Benefits under the defined benefit plan were based on
years of service and employees’ compensation during the last five years of covered employment.
The System makes annual contributions to the Memorial Plan, which approximate the amount of
net periodic pension cost. On December 31, 2014, the Memorial Plan was amended and
participants became eligible participants in the Care New England 403(b) Match and Savings Plan
effective January 1, 2015. Effective January 1, 2018, the sponsorship of Memorial Hospital's
Defined Benefit Pension Plan transferred to CNE.

Included in cumulative changes in net assets without donor restrictions at September 30, 2021 and
2020 that has not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost is an actuarial loss of
$33,090,860 and $41,607,329, respectively.

The actuarial loss included as cumulative changes in net assets without donor restrictions and
expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the fiscal year ended September 30,
2021 is $812,078.

Net periodic pension cost includes the following components at September 30:

2021 2020
Interest cost $ 4.303,102 $ 4,897,801
Expected return on plan assets (3,893,217) (3,531,118)
Amortization of loss 1,135,770 814,180
Net periodic pension expense $ 1,545,655 $ 2,180,863

The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended September 30 are

as follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate 278 % 3.24 %
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.00 6.00
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A
Weighted-average interest crediting rate N/A N/A
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The following tables represent a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the plan
projected benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, funded status, and amounts recognized in
net assets without donor restrictions of the plan as of September 30:

2021 2020
Changes in benefit obligations
Projected benefit obligations at beginning of year $ 158,995,636 $ 155,226,463
Interest cost 4,303,102 4,897,801
Actuarial (gain) loss (1,859,300) 6,934,953
Benefits and expenses paid (8,075,219) (8,063,581)
Projected benefit obligations at end of year 153,364,219 158,995,636
Changes in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 82,841,949 81,618,395
Actual return on plan assets 9,414,616 2,837,135
Employer contributions 14,250,000 6,450,000
Benefits and expenses paid (8,075,219) (8,063,581)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 98,431,346 82,841,949

Funded status
Total long-term pension liability $ 54932873 $ 76,153,687

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 153,364,219 $ 158,995,636
Amounts recognized in net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets without donor restrictions at beginning of year $ 41,607,329 $ 34,792,573
Amounts amortized during the year

Net loss (1,135,770) (814,180)
Amounts occurring during the year

Net (gain) loss (7,380,699) 7,628,936

Net assets without donor restrictions at end of year $ 33,090,860 $ 41,607,329

The assumptions used to develop the projected benefit obligations as of September 30 are as

follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate 2.94 % 2.78 %
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A
Weighted-average interest crediting rate N/A N/A
Plan Assets

The goals of the Memorial Plan are to provide a secure retirement benefit for plan participants and
to manage plan assets for the exclusive benefit of the participants. The invested assets will be
managed on a long-term total return basis and measured against established benchmarks for each
asset class. Risk management is achieved by limiting the size of asset class and individual
security positions to achieve adequate diversification. The Memorial Plan will maintain a funded
level sufficient to ensure benefit security.

44



Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2021 and 2020

The pension plan asset allocations (based on market value) at September 30, by asset category,
are as follows:

Target Actual Actual
Allocation 2021 2020
Asset category
Cash and cash equivalents 0 % 2% 3%
Investments at NAV 28 27 22
Fixed income securities 56 56 65
Equity securities 16 15 10
100 % 100 % 100 %

Refer to Note 24 for details on assets held by the Plan.

Contributions
The System contributed $14,250,000 and $6,450,000 to the Memorial Plan in 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The System expects to contribute $7,000,000 to the Plan in 2022.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments
Benefit payments, are expected to be paid as follows:

Pension

Fiscal Year Benefits
2022 $ 8,590,089
2023 8,801,494
2024 8,930,749
2025 8,987,989
2026 8,980,988
Years 2027-2031 43,238,834
$ 87,530,143

WIH Union Plan

WIH contributes to a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan under the terms of the collective
bargaining agreements that cover its union-represented employees. The risks of participating in
multiemployer plans are different from single-employer plans in the following aspects:

a. Assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by one employer may be used to provide
benefits to employees of other participating employers.

b. If a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan
may be borne by the remaining participating employers.

c. If WIH chooses to stop participating in the plan, WIH may be required to pay the plan an
amount based on the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal liability.
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WIH'’s participation in the plan for the annual period ended December 31, 2020, is outlined in the
table below. The “EIN/Pension Plan Number” column provides the Employer Identification Number
(EIN) and the three-digit plan number. The most recent Pension Protection Act (PPA) zone status
available in 2020 and 2019 is for the plan’s year-end at December 31, 2020, and December 31,
2019, respectively. The zone status is based on information that WIH received from the plan and is
certified by the plan’s actuary. Among other factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than
65 percent funded, plans in the yellow zone are less than 80 percent funded or projected funding
deficiency in current plan year or next following 6 plan years, plans in the orange zone are less
than 80 percent funded and projected funding deficiency in current plan year or next following 6
plan years, and plans in the green zone are at least 80 percent funded. The “FIP/RP Status
Pending/Implemented” column indicates plans for which a financial improvement plan (FIP) or
rehabilitation plan (RP) is either pending or has been implemented. The last column lists the
expiration date of the collective-bargaining agreements to which the plan is subject.

Expiration Date

Pension Protection Act FIP/RP Status of Collective-
Pension EIN/Pension Zone Status Pending/ Contributions of WIH Surcharge Bargaining
Plan Number 2020 2019 Implemented 2020 2019 Imposed Agreement
New England Health Care
Employees Pension Fund 22-3071963 - 001 Green Green No $ 10,360,382  $ 10,121,166 No 11/30/2024

WIH was listed in the plan’s Form 5500 as providing more than 5 percent of the total contributions
for the plan years ending December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

At the date the financial statements were issued, Form 5500 was not available for the plan year
ending December 31, 2021.

Pension expense, for the plan, for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, was
$10,647,956 and $10,215,512, respectively.

The Center Retirement Benefit Plan

The Center maintained a profit-sharing retirement plan to which the Center may make discretionary
contributions. The retirement plan covered all employees of the Center over the age of 21 who
have worked for a minimum of 975 hours during the plan year. Participants were vested over a
number of years of continuous service. Participants would become 100% vested after six years
unless the age of 65 is attained, upon which the participant became 100% vested. This plan
terminated as of December 31, 2017. The Center did not contribute to the retirement plan for the
year ended September 30, 2021 and 2020.

Effective January 1, 2017, the Center's employees were eligible to participate in the Care New
England 403(b) Match and Savings Plan.

Postretirement Plans

Kent sponsors an unfunded noncontributory defined benefit postretirement plan that provides
medical and dental benefits to certain salaried and non-salaried employees. In 1996, Kent
amended the plans to eliminate benefits for all employees, except for certain employees with at
least 25 years of service at that date.

Included in the charge to net assets that have not yet been recognized in net periodic

postretirement benefit cost is the unrecognized actuarial gain of $40,214 and $28,127 as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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17.

18.

The postretirement benefit cost for this plan was $20,971 in 2021 and $32,488 in 2020.
Disproportionate Share

The government has long recognized the financial burdens which are borne by hospitals which
serve an unusually large number, or “disproportionate share”, of low-income patients. Kent and
WIH received payments under the disproportionate share program of $29,005,398 from the State
of Rhode Island’s Medicaid program for the year ended September 30, 2021. Kent and WIH also
recorded disproportionate share payments of $1,363,534 from Medicare during 2021. Additional
payments of $2,873,386 were received during 2021 from Medicare as part of the provisions under
the Accountable Care Act to offset hospital costs for uncompensated care. Kent and WIH received
payments under the disproportionate share program of $26,498,606 from the State of Rhode
Island’s Medicaid program for the year ended September 30, 2020. Kent and WIH also recorded
disproportionate share payments of $1,449,966 from Medicare during 2020. Additional payments
of $2,186,895 were received during 2020 from Medicare as part of the provisions under the
Accountable Care Act to offset hospital costs for uncompensated care.

Licensure Fees

The State of Rhode Island assesses hospitals an annual licensure fee calculated as a percentage
of the hospital’s net patient service revenue. The Care New England hospitals were assessed
$38,340,710 and $45,254,839 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

As of September 30, 2021 and 2020, Care New England, the Hospitals, the Agency, and the
Center had cash and cash equivalents in excess of Federal Depository Insurance limits at major
financial institutions. These financial institutions have a strong credit rating, and management
believes that credit risks related to these deposits are minimal.

The Hospitals, the Agency, and the Center receive a significant portion of its payment for services
rendered from a limited number of governmental and commercial third-party payors, including
Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross. The organization has not historically incurred any significant
concentrated credit losses in the normal course of business.

In addition, the organizations routinely grant credit to patients without requiring collateral or other
security. The mix of receivables, net of price concessions, from patients and third-party payors at
September 30, 2021 and 2020, was as follows:

2021 2020

Medicare and Medicare Managed Care 18 % 17 %
Medicaid and Medicaid Managed Care 20 20
Blue Cross 23 25
Managed care 7 7
Self-pay 15 16
Other third-party payors 17 15

100 % 100 %
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19.

20.

Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

CNE, the Affiliates, the Agency and the Center have been individually named as codefendants in
several complaints. It is the opinion of management that the liability, if any, to CNE, the Affiliates,
the Agency, and the Center, in excess of insurance coverage will have no material adverse effect
on the consolidated financial position of Care New England as of September 30, 2021 and 2020.

Collective Bargaining Agreements

At September 30, 2021, approximately 54.2% of the System’s employees were covered by
collective bargaining agreements. In 2021, a one-year collective bargaining agreement covering
58.3% of Memorial's employees was ratified and will expire on June 30, 2022. The previous
Memorial collective bargaining agreement expired on June 30, 2018. The collective bargaining
agreement covering 83.6% of the VNA’s employees will expire on May 31, 2022. The collective
bargaining agreement covering 52.1% of Kent's employees expired on June 30, 2021 and was
extended through June 30, 2023. The collective bargaining agreement covering 79.7% of WIH'’s
employees expired on November 30, 2020 and was extended through November 30, 2024. The
collective bargaining agreement covering 66.4% of Butler's employees expired on March 31, 2021
and was extended through March 31, 2025.

Professional and General Liability Claims

Due to strategic and economic issues, as well as the potential for limited availability of commercial
insurance policies, the Care New England entities have moved over time to covering the majority of
their professional and general liability insurance to self-insured approaches. The adequacy of the
coverage provided, reserves, and the funding levels are evaluated annually by independent
actuaries who review the soundness of the programs and recommend future funding levels.
Potential losses are estimated based on industry as well as entity experience, and a provision for
these losses is recorded.

As of October 1, 2017, Care New England restructured the professional and general liability
insurance programs. Kent, Butler, CNE, the VNA and the Center obtain their primary professional
liability and general liability coverage via the Kent Hospital Self-Insurance Program on an
occurrence basis. WIH obtains their primary professional and general liability coverage via the
Women & Infants Hospital Self-Insurance Program on an occurrence basis. Both self-insurance
programs provide excess professional liability coverage on an occurrence basis for all of the
System. Reinsurance is purchased commercially on a claims-made basis for professional and
general liability coverage layers above the self-insurance primary and excess (professional liability
only) layers. BHI purchases, annually, commercial insurance policies to insure professional liability
and general liability risks.

Butler annually contributes to its self-insurance trust fund to provide for risks relating to its existing
actuarially calculated primary level of professional and general liabilities for events prior to
October 1, 2017, as well as the tail liability related to prior claims-made coverage. Butler's
professional liability coverage for claims in excess of its primary coverage limits is provided by W&l
Indemnity for events prior to October 1, 2017.
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21.

22,

Kent Hospital established Toll Gate Indemnity in 2004, as an off-shore captive insurance entity to
insure primary and excess hospital professional and general liability risks, as well as to supply
indemnification coverage for certain eligible medical staff. From July 1, 2014 to September 30,
2017, Kent Hospital purchased commercial insurance coverage on a claims made basis for
professional liability claims in excess of the professional liability coverage provided through Toll
Gate Indemnity. As of October 1, 2017, this commercially purchased excess became part of the
restructured program.

WIH established W&l Indemnity in 1994, as an off-shore captive insurance entity to provide
coverage for claims in excess of its underlying policy, as well as to supply indemnification coverage
for certain eligible medical staff. In addition, WIH has a self-insurance trust fund for risks relating to
prior tail liabilities. As of October 1, 2011, the primary coverage for professional and general
liabilities was moved under the off-shore captive.

Effective July 1, 2004, professional liability insurance coverage for Memorial was provided on an
occurrence basis. Such coverage was provided on a claims-made basis through June 30, 2004.
The claims-made policies cover only claims made during the terms of the policies, and not those
occurrences for which claims may be made after expiration of the policies. Memorial is self-insured
with respect to incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims incurred prior to July 1, 2004. Prior to

July 1, 2017, Memorial purchased, annually, commercial insurance policies to insure professional
liability risks. Memorial purchases, annually, commercial insurance policies to insure general
liability risks.

The provisions for anticipated losses were based upon expected undiscounted values. Trust fund
and captive assets are available for the payment of claims.

Prior to October 1, 2017, the Agency purchased general and professional liability insurance from
Toll Gate Indemnity.

Prior to October 1, 2017, the Center purchased commercial insurance policies to insure
professional and general liability risks.

Affiliation With Rhode Island Hospital

In 1981, Rhode Island Hospital (“RIH”) and WIH approved an agreement providing for the affiliation
of the two hospitals. The affiliation agreement provides for a program of shared medical services,
thereby greatly increasing the scope of comprehensive acute-care services available to WIH in
maternal, gynecological, and neonatal care. In accordance with the agreement, WIH relocated to
the property of RIH.

Affiliation With Accredited Medical Schools

Butler, WIH, and Kent are affiliated with The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University.
The affiliation agreement provides that Butler, Kent and WIH are Major Affiliated Teaching
Hospitals of The Warren Alpert Medical School of Brown University for psychiatry and behavioral
health, primary care medicine and family medicine, and activities unique to women and newborns,
respectively. In addition, Kent is affiliated with the University of New England College of
Osteopathic Medicine.
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23.

24,

Functional Expenses

CNE provides healthcare services to residents within their geographic service areas. The System’s
financial statements report certain expense categories that are attributable to more than one health
care service or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. Costs not directly attributable to a function include depreciation,
amortization and interest. Depreciation on land improvements, building and building improvements
are primarily allocated to a function based on square footage. Depreciation of moveable
equipment is primarily allocated to the function utilizing the equipment. Interest is allocated to a
function based on direct expenses. Expenses related to providing these services for the years
ended September 30 are as follows:

2021

Healthcare General and Total Healthcare General and Total
Services Administrative Research Other Operating Expenses Services ini i isil

Salaries and benefits $ 652309299 § 79,015,857 § -8 - § 731325156 § -8 - 8 1,347,196 $ 732,672,352
Supplies and other expenses 294,656,462 58,542,700 - 353,199,162 - - 464,305 353,663,467
Salaries and benefits - research - - 14,333,665 - 14,333,665 - - - 14,333,665
Supplies and other expenses - research - - 16,596,731 - 16,596,731 - - - 16,596,731
Depreciation and amortization 24,399,778 6,781,487 - - 31,181,265 - - - 31,181,265
Insurance 34,506,361 4,490,162 - - 38,996,523 - - - 38,996,523
Licensure fee 38,340,710 - - - 38,340,710 - - - 38,340,710
Interest 5,227,652 2,497,286 - - 7,724,938 - - - 7,724,938
Restructuring costs - Memorial Hospital - - 424,612 424,612 - - - 424,612
Other components of current period pension - 568,176 1,162,539 - 1,730,715
Pension settlement N N - - 8,428,282 928,159 - 9,356,441

$ 1,049,440262 $ 151,327,492 § 30,930,396 $ 424,612 $ 1,232,122,762  $ 8,996,458 § 2,090,698 § 1,811,501 §$ 1,245,021,419

2020
Healthcare General and Total Healthcare General and Total
Services Administrative Research Other Operating Expenses Services Admini i isi

Salaries and benefits $ 616,392,829 § 74,692,779 $ - 8 - § 691085608 § -8 - 8 1305272 § 692,390,880
Supplies and other expenses 257,605,142 56,580,489 - 314,185,631 - - 490,498 314,676,129
Salaries and benefits - research - - 15,062,665 - 15,062,665 - - - 15,062,665
Supplies and other expenses - research - - 16,353,806 - 16,353,806 - - - 16,353,806
Depreciation and amortization 23,415,586 6,224,548 - - 29,640,134 - - - 29,640,134
Insurance 29,467,929 2,791,191 - - 32,259,120 - - - 32,259,120
Licensure fee 45,254,839 - - - 45,254,839 - - - 45,254,839
Interest 5,066,336 2,613,006 - - 7,679,342 - - - 7,679,342
Restructuring costs - Memorial Hospital - - - 376,096 376,096 - - - 376,096
Other components of current period pension - - - - 1,938,803 1,680,128 - 3,618,931

§ 977202661 $ 142902013 § 31416471 $ 376096 $ 1151897241 $ 1938803 § 1680128 § 1795770 $ 1157311942

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The System values its financial assets and liabilities at fair value in accordance with GAAP. GAAP
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and delineates the disclosures
required about fair value measurements. Financial assets consist primarily of the endowment,
Board designated funds, trustee-held funds, and other investments. Additionally, GAAP allows the
System the use of estimates to fair value certain investments at the measurement date using NAV
reported by the investment managers without further adjustment, provided that the System does
not expect to sell the investments at a value other than the NAV.

GAARP clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As
such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering
assumptions, this standard established a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs
used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level 1 Valuations using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Valuations of these products do not require a significant degree of judgment.
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Level 2 Valuations using observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices in
active markets for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices for identical or similar
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; broker or dealer quotations; or other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the same term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Valuations using unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity
that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The System’s ownership in investments at NAV consists of limited partnership interests and
commingled funds. The value of certain investments at NAV represents the ownership interest in
the NAV of the respective fund. The NAV of the securities held that do not have readily
determinable fair values are determined by the investment manager or general partner and are
based on appraisals or other estimates that require varying degrees of judgment. If no public
market exists for the investment securities, the fair value is determined by the investment manager
or general partner taking into consideration, among other things, the cost of the securities, prices of
recent significant placements of securities of the same issuer, and subsequent developments
concerning the companies to which the securities related. The System has performed due
diligence around these investments to ensure NAV is an appropriate measure of fair value as of
September 30.

Financial instruments carried at fair value for the System’s nonpension plan assets as of
September 30, 2021 are classified in the table below in one of the three categories described

above:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
Assets
Short-term Investments
Mutual funds $ 100,229,300 $ - 8 - $§ 100,229,300
$ 100,229,300 $ - $ - $ 100,229,300
Endowment and board designated funds
Cash $ 215636 $ - 8 - % 215,636
Short-term investments 7,939,990 - - 7,939,990
Fixed income securities 4,179,330 16,901,245 - 21,080,575
Equity securities 23,429,593 - - 23,429,593
Mutual funds 86,840,117 - - 86,840,117
Assets held under split-interest agreements - - 35,281,825 35,281,825
$ 122,604,666 $ 16,901,245  § 35,281,825 174,787,736
Investments at NAV (a) 42,676,261
Total assets $ 217,463,997
Trustee-held funds
Cash $ 23,140,370 $ -3 - 3 23,140,370
Short-term investments 16,467,656 - - 16,467,656
Fixed income securities 4,356,596 41,694,762 - 46,051,358
Equity securities 43,213,463 - - 43,213,463
Mutual funds 2,939,251 54,965,695 - 57,904,946
$ 90,117,336  $ 96,660,457 $ - 186,777,793
Investments at NAV (a) 26,269,676
Total assets $ 213,047,469
Deferred compensation funds
Mutual funds $ 1,889,016 $ - $ - $ 1,889,016
$ 1,889,016 $ - $ - $ 1,889,016
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@ In accordance with Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that are measured at fair value using
the NAV per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient have not been classified in the
fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the tables are intended to permit
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the consolidated balance
sheets.

Financial instruments carried at fair value for the System’s nonpension plan assets as of
September 30, 2020 are classified in the table below in one of the three categories described

above:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
Assets
Endowment and board designated funds
Cash $ 166,778 $ - 3 - % 166,778
Short-term investments 14,075,280 - - 14,075,280
Fixed income securities 1,660,350 10,694,010 - 12,354,360
Equity securities 18,522,012 - - 18,522,012
Mutual funds 67,795,046 - - 67,795,046
Assets held under split-interest agreements - - 30,677,449 30,677,449
$ 102,219,466 $ 10,694,010 $ 30,677,449 143,590,925
Investments at NAV (a) 37,920,802
Total assets $ 181,511,727
Trustee-held funds
Cash $ 14,087,452 $ - 8 - % 14,087,452
Short-term investments 15,041,723 - - 15,041,723
Fixed income securities 5,866,692 41,513,018 - 47,379,710
Equity securities 32,866,965 - - 32,866,965
Mutual funds 2,468,144 52,088,357 - 54,556,501
$ 70,330,976 $ 93,601,375 $ - 163,932,351
Investments at NAV (a) 20,379,759
Total assets $ 184,312,110
Deferred compensation funds
Cash $ 40,000 $ - 8 - % 40,000
Mutual funds 1,469,048 - - 1,469,048
$ 1,509,048 $ - $ - $ 1,509,048

@ In accordance with Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that are measured at fair value using
the NAV per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient have not been classified in the
fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the tables are intended to permit
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in the consolidated balance
sheets.

The amounts reported in the financial instruments table exclude the values of life insurance policies
valued at $22,596,350 as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, which are valued at the lesser of
discounted value or cash surrender value.

All financial instruments are valued using a market approach involving identical or comparable
assets.
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Financial instruments carried at fair value for assets invested in the CNE Defined Benefit Pension
Plan as of September 30, 2021 are classified in the table below in one of the three categories
described above:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,452,880 $ - % - $ 3,452,880
Fixed income securities 43,755,997 14,994,915 - 58,750,912
Equity securities 4,619,368 - - 4,619,368
Mutual funds 29,390,058 - - 29,390,058
$ 81,218,303 $ 14,994,915 $ - 96,213,218
Investments at NAV (b) 79,110,898
Total assets $ 175,324,116

Financial instruments carried at fair value for assets invested in the CNE Defined Benefit Pension
Plan as of September 30, 2020 are classified in the table below in one of the three categories
described above:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,758,501  $ -3 - $ 5,758,501
Fixed income securities 33,849,494 14,980,728 - 48,830,222
Equity securities 5,764,944 - - 5,764,944
Mutual funds 39,243,477 - - 39,243,477
$ 84,616,416  $ 14,980,728  $ - 99,597,144
Investments at NAV (b) 77,336,237
Total assets $ 176,933,381

® In accordance with Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that are measured at fair value using

the NAV per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient have not been classified in the
fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the tables are intended to permit
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in Note 14 Retirement Plans.

All financial instruments are valued using a market approach involving identical or comparable
assets.
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Financial instruments carried at fair value for assets invested in Memorial’s Defined Benefit
Pension Plan as of September 30, 2021 are classified in the table below in one of the three

categories described above:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,622,348 $ - $ 1,622,348
Equity securities 2,425,446 - 2,425,446
Mutual funds 23,340,985 - 23,340,985
Guaranteed annuity contracts - 44,642,747 44,642,747
$ 27,388,779  $ 44,642,747 72,031,526
Investments at NAV (c) 26,399,820
Total assets $ 98,431,346

Financial instruments carried at fair value for assets invested in Memorial’s Defined Benefit
Pension Plan as of September 30, 2020 are classified in the table below in one of the three

categories described above:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,903,473 $ - $ 1,903,473
Equity securities 1,757,023 - 1,757,023
Mutual funds 13,873,836 - 13,873,836
Guaranteed annuity contracts - 46,850,478 46,850,478
$ 17,534,332  $ 46,850,478 64,384,810
Investments at NAV (c) 18,457,139
Total assets $ 82,841,949

© In accordance with Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that are measured at fair value using
the NAV per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient have not been classified in the
fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in the tables are intended to permit
reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the amounts presented in Note 14 Retirement Plans.

All financial instruments are valued using a market approach involving identical or comparable

assets.
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During the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, the changes in the fair value
for the System’s financial instruments in the nonpension plan assets measured using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) were comprised of the following:

2021 2020
Fair value at October 1 $ 30,677,449 % 29,290,931
Total gains (losses)
Contributions 750 325
Dividends and interest income 128,070 217,284
Net realized gains on investments 2,646,850 843,158
Change in net unrealized appreciation
on investments 3,717,762 1,371,221
Distributions (1,889,056) (1,045,470)
Fair value at September 30 $ 35281825 $ 30,677,449

During the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, the changes in the fair value
for the System’s financial instruments in Memorial’s Defined Benefit Pension Plan assets measured
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) were comprised of the following:

2021 2020

Fair value at October 1 $ 46,850,478 $ 49,241,890
Total gains (losses)

Dividends and interest income 1,477,697 1,311,663

Change in net unrealized

appreciation on investments 423,624 542,641

Benefit payments (4,109,052) (4,245,716)
Fair value at September 30 $ 44642747 $ 46,850,478

The System uses NAV to determine the fair value of its investments which do not have a readily
determinable fair market value. The following tables summarize the key provisions for the
System’s nonpension plan investments as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which
are valued at NAV.

Commingled Commingled
Redemption Terms as of Funds Funds Limited
September 30, 2021 Equity Real Assets Partnership Total
Endowment and board designated funds
Daily, 0-1 day prior written notice $ 13,095,106 $ -9 - % 13,095,106
Bi-Monthly, Monthly, 7-30 days prior
written notice 4,963,829 7,995,110 10,485,760 23,444,699
6-12 years - - 6,136,456 6,136,456

$ 18,058,935 § 7,995110 § 16,622,216 $ 42,676,261

Trustee-held funds

Daily, 30 days prior written notice $ 14,513,931  $ - $ -3 14,513,931
Monthly, 5-30 days prior written notice 11,755,745 - - 11,755,745
$ 26,269,676 $ - $ - % 26,269,676
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Commingled Commingled
Redemption Terms as of Funds Funds Limited
September 30, 2020 Equity Real Assets Partnership Total
Endowment and board designated funds
Daily, 0-1 day prior written notice $ 10,103,184 $ - 3 - 9 10,103,184
Bi-Monthly, Monthly, 7-30 days prior
written notice 6,850,524 5,824,617 6,974,069 19,649,210
6-12 years - - 8,168,408 8,168,408

$ 16,953,708 § 5,824,617 § 15,142,477  § 37,920,802

Trustee-held funds

Daily, 30 days prior written notice $ 11,197,841 $ - 9 - % 11,197,841
Monthly, 5-30 days prior written notice 9,181,918 - - 9,181,918
$ 20,379,759 $ - $ - $ 20,379,759

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value:

Fixed Income Securities and Fixed Income Mutual Funds

The estimated fair values of investments in fixed income securities and mutual funds are based on
quoted prices and/or other market data for the same or comparable instruments and transactions in
establishing the prices. The marketable fixed income securities and mutual funds classified as
Level 1 were classified based on quoted prices of the actual instruments in active markets. The
fixed income securities classified as Level 2 were classified as such due to the usage of observable
market prices for similar securities that are traded in less active markets or when observable
market prices for identical securities are not available. Marketable debt instruments are priced
using: quoted market prices for similar instruments or pricing models, such as a discounted cash
flow model, with all significant inputs corroborated with observable market data. These Level 2
securities primarily include corporate bonds, notes and other fixed income securities.

Equity Securities and Equity Mutual Funds
The fair values of investments in equity securities and mutual funds classified primarily as Level 1
are based on quoted market prices.

Assets Held Under Split-Interest Agreements

The System is party to various split-interest agreements, including perpetual trusts and assets held
at a community foundation. Beneficial interest in trusts are recorded at fair value and these assets

are considered Level 3 by the System due to lack of observable inputs into the valuation process of
these investments.

The estimated fair values of assets held under split-interest agreements are determined based
upon information provided by the trustees and assessed for reasonableness by management.
Such information is generally based on the pro rata interest in the net assets of the underlying
investments. These assets consist primarily of cash equivalents and marketable securities.

Guaranteed Annuity Contracts

The estimated fair values of guaranteed annuity contracts are based on the book value of the
contract (equal to the market value of the contract after its discontinuance) provided by the
insurance company to the contract holder.
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25.

Subsequent Events

In September 2020, CNE entered into a Letter of Intent with Lifespan Corporation (“Lifespan”)
pursuant to which CNE and Lifespan would merge into a single entity. Following a due diligence
process, on February 23, 2021, CNE and Lifespan signed a definitive agreement formalizing the
planned merger. The parties are in the process of obtaining the required state and federal
regulatory approvals. CNE submitted a Hart-Scott-Rodino (“HRS”) premerger notification filing with
the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) and the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice
on April 14, 2021, and on May 14, 2021, the FTC issued CNE a Request for Additional Information
and Documentary Material (“Second Request”). CNE certified substantive compliance with the
Second Request on November 24, 2021. CNE and Lifespan filed an application under the Hospital
Conversions Act (the “HCA Application”) with the Rhode Island Office of Attorney General (“RIAG”)
and Rhode Island Department of Health (“RIDOH”) on April 26, 2021 and resubmitted the HCA
Application with additional information on October 1, 2021. On November 16, 2021, the RIAG and
RIDOH accepted the HCA Application and the review period commences on November 17, 2021.
CNE and Lifespan also plan to submit a Change in Effective Control application with RIDOH before
the end of calendar year 2021.

Care New England Health System has assessed the impact of subsequent events through
December 20, 2021, the date the audited consolidated financial statements were issued and has
concluded that there were no such events other than noted above requiring adjustments to the
audited consolidated financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the audited consolidated
financial statements.
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Basis of Presentation

The following supplemental consolidating information includes the consolidating balance sheets
and the consolidating statement of operations and changes in net assets of the individual
subsidiaries of Care New England Health System as of and for the fiscal year ended

September 30, 2021. All intercompany accounts and transactions between subsidiaries have been
eliminated. Care New England Medical Group, LLC (“CNEMG”) has been presented in its own
column in the following supplemental schedules, separate from the other Kent County Memorial
Hospital (“Kent”) affiliates due to increased activity at CNEMG. Intercompany transactions
between the two entities primarily consist of a payment between Kent and CNEMG totaling
$28,910,418, for the year ended September 30, 2021, which has not been eliminated between the
two columns. The consolidating information presented is prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America consistent with the consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements and is not
required as part of the basic financial statements.

58



6S

‘sjuswia)els |eloueul Bunepljosuoo [eluswalddns esay) jo Led |eiBsjul ue si 8jou BulAuedwoooe ay |

G99'029'L0L’L $  (086°LE0'OLL) §  9Y0'9E8'6Z  §  PEL'B0'Y $ oes'oLl'er  §  (€0L1€8) $ oezzeo'e. §  Lz9'GLL'0e9  $ (9rb'Syi'9)  $ 189'6¥9'.SE § OvEOLY'L8  § sjesse [ejoL
- (60€°186°GL 1) - - - - 60€'186'G |1 - - - sajeljie woy anq
82.'998'9 - [ - 000G - 89.°1ST'y L06°28L°} - 9L¥'88lL 116222} sjesse Jayl0
€91'886'€ - 000052 - 800°080'€ - §52'80% - - - 000052 9|qeAIg0al soueInsu|
99v'€L9'} - ¥18'GE - - - - 600°€2€'L - 81L'9ZL 598281 10U ‘s|qeAIB08) S8Bp3|d Wis)-Buc
TLL'GL9'L6 - zsz'seL't - - - ¥99'G98'6 ¥92'€20'2S LIY'71S'2 €61'€2€'GC 29v'228 10U ‘sjasse asn-jo-1ybu ases) Bunesedo
18L°evL'9 - 682°0€ - - 185°L 092°202'C €29'G20'L - 85+'228'C - 10U ‘sjasse asn-jo-Jybu ases| soueuly
880'2€5'062 - ZLS'Lp9'sL - 08Z'98%'9 €05'2YL yrL'9LEOL 6¥2'5¥0'601 - 959'066'LL ¥+9'806'91 1ou Juswidinbs pue jueld ‘Auadoid
¥9€'SYE' VT - - - Y9E'SYE VT - - - - - - IMPO0D
61170625y - 295°00L'e - SOE'Y0L YL S/STY0'L 05560594 008'v92'292 - €61°052'L1L ¥€1'8€0'8E SN 0} Se PajiLul| S]OSSE JUALINJUON
(€12'260°2) - - - - - (€12'260'2) - - - - suonef|qo jueLnd J9aw 0} pauinbal sjunowy :sse7
2€8'966'¥5Y - 295°00L'e - SOE'Y0L YL S/STY0'L €92°965'81 008'¥92'292 - €61°062'L1L ¥E1'8€0'8E 9sn 0} Se payiLl| Sjasse [BJoL
910688’} - - - - - 291'89€°L €82'92C - 8ee'LL €€2'62C spuny uonesuadwiod paiajeq
69¥'LY0'ELT - S%0°'156 - - - LoL'gze'LL 268'88'SZ1 - 0£€°9Y0'59 190°€€E'y spunj pjay-aa)sni
966'22€'95} - - - - G/5'2Y0°L - €89'162'SHL - 259'702'0€ 980'V8L'6 spuny pajeubisep-pieog
Lge'2€L'e8 - 115671 - SOE'Y0L L - - Tr6'LST 1T - €€8'126'LC ¥5.'269'€C spunj juswmopu3
SN 0] Se PajoL}Sal IO PajlWl| S| 8SN 9SOYM S}aSSy
8€8'L6Y'€8Z (129'09) G8Y'259'6 ¥€L'890'% €15'68 (8e€'v20'2) (028'805'98) 18L'v61'€0Z (€26'652'6) €5.'/¥6'6€) ¥92'286'€C Sjasse JuaLno [ejo)
- (129°'09) - - 0SS} - LYELY 08L°} - - - sajeljye woy ang
€12'260'C - - - - - €1.'260'C - - - - pajiwi| sI 8sn 8soym sjasse Jo Co_toa usuny
605'6VE'LL - L8'eLL €8€'2Y 9zz'L 028'6Y 90L°07L'9 16882y 1¥0'661 980°2€6'S 615°18Y SJasse JuaLno JaYI0
1L1€'250'} - £19'8L - - - - 120'€9¢ - 220'vL G89'0€S 19U ‘9|qeA1903) sabpald
0Z.'209'Ge - 119'e55°2 0S6°€€6'L 09S'LL¥ £08'220°L €E0'LLE'L €1£'298'8 £86'676'C 829'GY6'S GE'SYS'Y sa|qeAisoal Jaylo
99G'/¥¥'801 - 919'v95°2 - 980°LL VL 'YES Y 05962 Y¥L'L0S'€S VLL'6LT'L 295°2LL'vE 88€'19¥'9 9|qeAIS03] SJUNODoE Jusljed
ooe'6ze'00l $ - - - - - 00e'6zz'00L $ - - - - SJUBUISBAUI LLIB}-HOYS
659'212'8L  $ - $  wvLisCy $ (665'206'€) $ (6v8°L) $ (Lh21e9'2) ¢ (e9g'coe’9sl) $  TLO'LEL'9el ¢ (lzL'829'6l)  $  GGve8s't6  §  L€8'956'LL  $ sjuajeanba yseo pue ysed
sjosse juaun)d
sjassy
lejol Jajua)y eibaju| sojel|y pue Kouaby puejbuz dnoig 1V pue 1Y pue
ayL au| ‘wayshg ayyL MaN aied |esipa\ juay Jaing
aieoyjjeay puejbugz
ula)seayjnog MaN aien

1202 ‘0€ 19quiaydas
joayg aouejeg Bunepijosuo)

sajel|iyly pue walsAg yjjeaH puejbug mapN aie)



09

"sjuawalels [eroueuly Bunepijosuod [ejuswajddns asay; Jo ued |eibajul ue si sjou BulAuedwoaoe ay |

G99'029'L0L°L $  (086°LE0'OLL) §  9Y0'9E8'6Z  §  PEL'B0'Y $ oesoLL'er  §  (€0L1€8) $ oez'zeo'e. $  Lzosii'oe9 § (ovv'swl'9)  $ 289'6Y9'LGE $ O¥E'OLYLE  § S}osSE Jou pue sanligel [ejoL
059'2L9°0v€ - 9€8'6Y6'02 (088%98°9) [CEEEE) (6027220°G) (626'295°261) ¥€5°99G'601 (29v'zee’02) 8V6'EY9'vIL 29€'669'2S sjasse Jau [ejo)
18€°299'201 - 08+'L06'S 85101 8¥8°/GZ'SL 801Z€L 000041 28Y'2LEVE 121°09 025'960'72 0/€'9zL'LT SUONOLIISI JOUOP YA
£92'500'€€T - 9G€'8¥0'S1L (8e€'528°9) (ev8°'119'26) (218'v02'S) (6,6'2L9'L61) 250'v61'SLE (885°26€'02) 8Ty LYS ovL 266'2.6'vC SUONOLIS3I JOUOP JNOYYAA
sjasse JoN
510°8Y6'09L (086°1L€0°9L 1) 012'988'8 719°€€6'0L S2S'vor'ozt 900°L¥2'% 602°'565°042 €60°675'022 120°28G°€} 6€.'G00°€61 8/5°111'82 sailiqel| [ejoL
- (60€°186'GLL) - - 60€'186'G kL - - - - - - sajeljye 0} eng
182'856'vL - §22'08L - 618'¢89 S19'v0€ G/6'2YS'L 598422y - €21'GL0'S 660'70%'2 sal Jayio
y1€'268 - - - - - - - - y1€268 - Aunge| yuswaumensod
¥¥5'02r'eL - - - - 296'661 888€¥8'95 509'99L'€ - 96.'2€0'9 £62'2/8'9 Aniiqey) uoisuag
§59'7€6'88 - £88'G98 - - - Lv6'LL8'L 252°985'€S 2TrLEY'L 891°902'72 686092 asea| bupesado wie)-6uo
S06'GY0't - 891'vC - - 085'S 9L0'v0Y'L 110V L - ¥SL'LL8'L - Auiqey eses| soueuy wis)-6uo
2€5'999'0G1 - 80v'eYy - - - 889'768'ChL 6v'8.5'€ - £88'268'} 601262 199p wis)-6uo
012'¥86'92 - - - 18v'ziL's 6v€'282 - LGL'ESL'YL - 0LZ'6LY'S €15'256'L S9OUBADE pUE Sjuswiapes Joked
Aued-payy pajewnss Jo uood wis)-6uo
1Gb'169'991 - 000052 - 800°08L°€ - 688'v€9'L 988°95€°86 - 801°695'SS 095°099'} S9AIBSBI BOURINSUI-BS
saljl|igel| wus) mCOI_
8L1'€6E'vET (129'09) 925'226'9 719'¢€6'01 806905} oLv'erL'e Z18'96€'2S 2988842y 665'676'LL €86'180'26 §10'02L'2) saljiligel] JuaLno [ejo)
- (129'09) 8 - - - 2L - - 168'8% - sajeljye 0} enq
Sz6'LLL'E - £52'GvE 888'GL 9zs'zLe y16°9vC £6€'G28 065705 zL 208'982 €EY'PLY Gel| JUBLINO JAYIO
S6Y'€51'82 - YLLLYO'L - - 260791 90268 629'195'2 - 8L0'ELL'LL TT6'YLLL Ajiigey) uoisuag
108'6v8'8 - - - - - 108'6¥8'8 - - - - S9AIBSAI BoURINSUI-)8S
666'62L'6 - L¥6'60€ - - - 115'8LY'T 105'9€2'€ ¥2€'€06 OLY'169'L 252°0L Auiqen eses| buesado Jo uood Juaing
¥56°258°} - €LL'L - - 20€°T 98€°119 L1687y - 281'88. - Auiqe ases| soueuy Jo uopod yuauny
G85'285'L - G6E'9E - - - 020°'vvE'9 069'925 - 895°0LS 2L6'v9L 199p wu)-6uo o uoiuod JueLnd
£Y9'EEYLE - ¥29'8€C - 299°'08¢ - - yLS'OPY'e 251606 G16'226'€C 912'6e5'2 S9oUBAPE pUE SjusWes Joked
Aued-payy payewnss jo uoiuod uaund
oLL'esTyrL § - $  8SEEvE'y $ 9zlls80L  §  02LL06 $ zoLoeLT $ cog'esy'sz  $  LE0'80SLE  § Z00‘eri‘OL  $  zeL'OZi'iy  $ 086028 $ sasuadxa paniode pue ajqeAed sjunodoy
lejol Jajua)y eibaju| sojel|y pue Kouaby puejbuz dnoug 1V pue 1Y pue
ayyL au| ‘wayshg ayyl MaN aied |esipaN juay Ja)ing
aieoyjjeaq pue|bugz
ula)seayjnog MaN aien

1202 ‘0€ 1oquaydag
joayg aouejeg Bunepljosuo)

sajel|iyly pue walsAg yjeaH puejbug mapN aie)



19

"sjuswalels [eroueuly Bunepijosuod [ejuswalddns asay Jo Led jeibajul ue si sjou BulAuedwoooe ay |

6€9'290°20L $ - z99'zI0'e § cze'osez  §  sie'spl'e §  9ee'esl’t (099°16) $ LYEL001E  § - 6207209'Ly  §  LEL'6YLTL
YIZBLLS - 195612 - (96651 1°1) 9962L'C TY0T6LTL G2v'6528 - 6,6'GrY 6L 16270001
- - - - (966°G11°1) - - - - 966'SLL'L -
(2£0°299) - - - - - - (080°19) - (266°005) -
YEE'POL'} - 195'612 - - - - 6v5°20} - y2z'Tre -
266'SLL'LS - - - - 9962212 zv0'zeLTL 956'212'8 - 152'886'LL LEZ'900°0L
SZYv8 08 - 10LE6LT 228058C VIEYIT Y (025°686) (z0L€882H) 916'ZVEEC - 05095182 v6v'SvLC
€128L0VE - 2516 - O (928798€) (226'676°€) Y5 YSL6C - 8Y610°9 2E20V0°C
(2699571 - 008G - viz 29 Teegz08) Zv068) - €88°/€1 0EL'8)
(L1°'95€'6) - - - - (v61°082) (z62'¢28) (10z°186°1) - (2215109 (280°952)
(SLL'08L'L) - - - - (ev6'9) (ev9'v95"1) (809'€€) - (506°29) (919'28)
SL¥'99Z'0€ - (660°1) - (€9) £vy'szL 209°t 0/Z'0ZE 1T - 168°04¥'L 99€'2VE'L
L12'10L°L - 98598 - 966'GLL'L Sv0°19) 002z SLZ'6LL - L9102} 89096
YEV'YSI'VL - (se) - - LL2'e9 ¥8%'06Z ¥28'0v5'6 - ¥80'29€'€ 99€'26€'L
251902 91 B 6V8'10LC 228'098'C 7918l e T769209) (0£.'€€6'8) T929'908'9) - Z0Levi e 292°501
29l Teieee’t  (S28°LLvTye) 969692 25 Y6725 6L 0€8'956°€ €L0°98€°SC 991°2/2°85) 71062866V 1¥6°9G5 €91 0SE9LZZEY ZISYPo6LL
z19vey - - - Z19vey - - - - - -
866'V2L'L - £16'92€ - - 118 996'2.6'} 2e8'750'e - 181'T8S°L £25'968
oLL'0ve'8E - - - - - - £8Y'56.'02 - 1225 LL -
£25'966'8€ (¥16'229't) 819'ZEL 185'sz) LeL'yL 9€9'982 LoL'1zk 106'8€5"LL ¥61'6€6'C 918'08.'6L £59'824'2
S9Z'181°1€ - 110'820°} - £05'505 Y0v'19 S¥5'260°L 160'220°0L - 1+9'699'6 ¥50'25L'2
96€'0£6'0€ - - - S€1'259 - - ¥66'656'vL - 119'6L0°L 065°20€'¥L
291'661'€5€ (2901'252'8€2) 8Y6'LLLLL 6vL'687'2L 6LE19L'L 918'296'S 26.°26L'SL $59'7b2'90C 965'G1E'LT 6LL'OYELLT 9/8'G9€'EE
951'G2€"LEL 998'26Y 0v4'%00°'6E £19'606'9 99+'865 00€'¥20'6L zLL'T6T'EL Lhyisiize 165'108°EEL 121'92€'59) 918'852'99
VI6'82EBYC L (S28'LLyThe) SYSLL6'7S 69L'GLECC 166704Z 6LE'EEL VT 9EV'BEC 6L oYY'9L0 e 1¥6'9G5° €91 2SV'6SE VST YLL'6YE0CL
€822H0E - 801°€06 05 0v9 aze 00501 8GETYL 76682 G1Z°'€05 €€0°€58
962°296' L) (s28'22¥'2v2) £58'7LY'SL 612'G/ETT 107058 €62°€0L'C 98/'6L€'67L 819'569'GS 6£0'92€°EL SZY'9L6'LY 126'228'6L
ov9'zsY'LL - SO0E'SL - - 90v'262 - £EY'SP6'6L 00672} 118'€TL'ES 612056'C
981'525'SE - - - 2€2'5v9 - - 966'289°91 - 186'99L°L 1250891
606'G5€'¥86  $ - 6.2'8€9'8€  § - $  vzL'809C  §  sse'seL'lT osi'g $  186'6Y6°00y §  800°2L0°06 888'8V0'lSE  §  ¥ZS'L82'6L
|ejor 19ua) eibaju| 11V pue Kouaby puejbug sojel|iyy pue dnoig sajel|yy pue sa)
eyl *ou| ‘wayshs ayl MaN aied |esipay oy J8png
aleoyjjeay puejbuz
uwig)seaynog MaN aied

SUONOL}S3] JOUOP JNOYIM SJOSSE JaU Ul (9sea10ap) asealou]

siajsuel]
SUOJOLISaI JOUOP UM SIOSSE JaU O} JoJSuel |

juawdinba pue jued ‘Apadosd

40 @seyound 1o} pasn SUOROL}SI WO Pases|al S1esse 1aN
sjuswisnipe Juswainalisod pue uoisuad

SUOOLISaI JOUOP JNOYNM S}OSSE Jou Ul sebueyd Jayio

$9s50| pue sasuadxa Jano poddns Jayjo pue ‘suieb ‘senuanal Jo (Aousioyep) sseoxg
(sasso)) st

6 Bunesadouou JoN
joU 1aYI0
JUSWIBIAS UOISURY
uoisuad pouad Juaund Jo sjusuodwod JBYO
SjuaWSaAUI uo (sasso]) suleb pazijealun jau ul abuey)
suoNGLIL0Y
JoU ‘asn 0} SB pajiWl| S}9SSE UO (S8sS0|) Suleb pazijeal pue (SSo|) aWOodUl JUBLWISOAU|
(sasso|) suieb Buiesadouon
suonjesado woyy (ssoj) awoou|
sasuadxa Bunesado |ejo]
[eNdSOH [eUOWSN - $}S00 Butinjonisay
JESTE]
99 aunsusol]
soueinsu|
uoneziuowe pue uoneraideq
sosuadxe yoseasay
sasuadxa Jayjo pue salddng
sjyauaq pue seuejes
sasuadxa Bunesedg
yoddns Jayjo pue ‘suleb ‘senuanss Bunesado |ejo)
suopjesado Joj pasn pue SUOHOLISal WOlj Pasesjal SJASSE 19N
anusnal JaYI0
Buipuny jaijes - aNuBALI JuBID
anuanal yoseasay
anuanal aojAIes Juaned JaN
Joddns Jayjo pue ‘suieb ‘sanuaaai Bunesado

1202 ‘0€ Jaquiaydag papu3 Jea)

suonjesadQ jo juawaje}g Buiepijosuon
sajel|Iyy pue walsAs yjjeaH puejbug mapN aie)



c9

"sjuswalels [eroueuly Bunepijosuod [ejuswalddns asay Jo ued |eibajul ue si sjou BulAuedwoooe ay |

0S9'7/9'00€ § - $  9e8'6¥6'0Z (088'v98'9) ¢ (s66'e5e'LL) & (60272.00) & (616795°261) $  veES'99S'60r § (L9v'Tee’0Z) §  8YE'EYO'VOL §  Z9€'669CS  $
200'919°12Z - 8Z€'996'LL (z00'zzL'6) (€21'820'28) (291750€°9) (61E"L9V261) 98Z'88E'ZTLE (€2v°€0€°02) 8GY'ESSTLL ¥99'8/5'VE
8995061 1 - 805'€86'C 2z1'188°T 8L1'VTL'y 8572621 (099°101) 8YZ'8LLLE (v66'82) 067°060°'S 86902181
60076691 - (¥51'62) 00€'9 09Y'9/G'L 290'6 (000°04) 106'045'S (¥66'82) 19v'88%"% 196'0/E'S
210295 - - - - - - 080°19 - 266005 -
(80£°259'%) - (6992211 (0s) (ov9) (sze) (005°04) (£06'v¥8) (v66°'82) (66%'SvE"L) (vZ1'v0e"L)
800°1€2'% - - - ¥2E'665 - - ¥82'855°L - 00v'€20'C -

89E'€LE - 89E'ELE - - - - - - - -

158'26€'8 - 129'82 - 9€1'9€6 - - 125'880°' - 1€8'922'L 9L LY
925'€L€ - 602 - ov9'Ly - - 262'26 - 89E'VS 110281
268'€LLL - 11€'889 0S€E'9 - 18¢8'6Y 005 189'519°C - €9€'8.6'L 8E€'G/E'T
6£929020} - 299210t 228058'C SIEBYLE 96E€8) | (099716) 1YE209'1E - 620209 LY LEL6vLTL
- - - - (9665111 - - - - 966'GL} L -
(220°299) - - - - - - (080°19) - (z66°003) -

YEEYOL'L - 195612 - - - - 65201 - vzzTre -
296'GLL°LS - - - - 996°2L1'T Zv0°T6LTL 9562128 - 1G2'886°L} L8Z'%00°0L
szy'vezos  § - $  L0L'E6LT zz8'0s8'7  §  vievozy  $  (025'686) $ (coL'esszl) § olevEET  § - § o0so'osk'sz  $  vev'svLT  $
|ejoL 19ua) eibaju| 11V pue Kouaby puejbug sojel|iyy pue dnoig sajel|yy pue S9!
ayL *ou| ‘wayshs ayyL M3N aled |edipan juay Japng
aleoyjjeaq puejbuz
uwig)seaynog MaN aied

1eak Jo pug
Jeak jo Buluuibag
sjosse JoN
s}osSE Jou Ul (asealoap) aseaou]
SUONOLIS3 JOUOP UM S}OSSE 19U U (9sea10ap) aseasou|
SUOJJOLISaI JOUOP JNOYJIM S}OSSE JoU WO} IBJSUBI |
SUONOLISaI WO} Pases|al SJOSSe JoN
sysnu) [enjediad ul jsaseyul [eloyauaq Ul sabuey)
uolepuNo} AJUNWIWOD Je pjay S}esse Ul 1saia)ul [eloyauaq uj sabueyd
sjusw}saAul woyy suieb pazijesiun pue pazieal jJoN
SJUBWISAUL WOLJ BUIOOU|
suonNGLIU0Y
SUOIOLI}SI JOUOP UM S}asse JoN

SUONOL}SS) JOUOP INOU}IM S}BSSE JouU Uj (9sea108p) 8sea.ou]
siejsuel]
L}S81 10UOP Y}iM SJOSSE Jou O} Jojsuel ]
juawdinba pue jued ‘Apadoid
10 @seyaInd 1o} PaSN SUOIOLSaI WOlJ Pases|al SJASSe 1N
sjuawisnipe Juswaua.sod pue uoisusd
SUOJJOLISaI JOUOP JNOY}IM S}OSSE Jou Ul sabueyd Jaylo
$9550| puk sasuadxa Jano Joddns Jayjo pue ‘suieb ‘senuanai Jo (Aousioyep) ssaoxg
sjosse JoN

suol]

1202 ‘0€ Joquiaydag papu3 Jea)

sjassy JoN ul sebuey) jo jJuswaje}g Bunepijosuon
sajel|iy pue walsAs yjjeaH puejbug mapN aie)



Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards



Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

ASSISTANCE DIRECT AGENCY/ PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL PASSED-
CLUSTERPROGRAMAGENCY LISTING o , THROUGHTO
NUMBER PASS-THROUGH IDENTIFYING NUMBER EXPENDITURES SUBRECTPIENTS
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER
United States Department of Defense (DOD)
US. Army Medical Research Aeguisision demviry (ASAMRA4)
Military Medical Ressarch and Development 12 420 Dhirect 5 (86) S -
Military Medical Ressarch and Development 12 420 University of Sovthern California CTADODTAUS41 143 086
Subrotal - (12.420) 148,000
Narignal Science Foundation (NSF)
Enginzering 47.041 Brown University 1200 3,041
Subrotal - (47.041) 3,041
Department of Veterans Affairs
IPA Agreament 64 RD Dhirect
WA Brain Control 54.FD Direct
IPA Agrzement 54 FD Dirsct
IPA Arsrsement 54 ED Direct
VA Connsctiest Healthears System 64 RD Dhract

Subtotal - (64.RD)

United States Depariment of Health and Human Services (HHS)
Natonal Insitutes of Health (NIH), Office of Disease Prevennion
Family ¥moking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act Regulatory

77 & Miri spi T10-7147012 51)
Ressarch 83.077 The Miriam Hospital 10-714701 (651)
Subrotal - (93.077) (631)
Nanonal Intitute of Evnirenmenial Health Sciences (NIEHS)
Environmental Haalth 63113 Brown University 664 (659)
Environmental Hzalth 83.113 Emory University TT04711 32,745
Subroral - (93.113) 31,676
Nuational Center for Complementary and Integrative Health (NCCIH)
Rasearch and Training in Complementary and Integrative Health 03213 Dhirect 29301
Razearch and Training in Complementary and Integrative Health 93213 Dirsct 674,067 273,188
Razearch and Training in Complementary and Integrative Health 93213 Brown University 1232 76,961
Rasearch and Training in Complementary and Integrative Health 03213 Brown University 2 5272
Subteinl - (93.213) 783,681 273,188
Ageney for Healtheare Research and Qualy (AHRO)
Raszearch on Healthears Costs, Quality and Outcomss 093226 Dirsct 53,700
Subtotal - (93.226) 923,700

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

CLUSTERPROGRAMAGENCY

Nanonal Centeron Sleep Disorder Research (NHLEI)
Mational Center of Sleep Disorders Kessarch

Subiotal - (93.233)

Natenal Instirute of Mental Health (NIMH)

Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Ressarch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Ressarch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Ressarch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Ressarch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Ressarch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Res=arch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Mental Health Reszarch Grants
Subtoral - (93.242)

ASSISTANCE
LISTING
NUMBER

83.233

83.242
53.242
53.242
83.242
83.242
53.242
§3.242
83.242
03.242
53.242
83.242
83.242
03.242
53.242
83.242
83.242
53.242
53.242
83.242
83.242
53.242
§3.242
83.242
83.242
53.242
83.242
83.242
03.242
53.242
83.242
83.242
53.242
53.242
83.242
83.242

DIRECT AGENCY/
PASS-THROUGH

The MMirtam Hospital

Diract

Dirsct

Dirsct

Diract

Direct

Dirsct

Diract

Diract

Direct

Dirsct

University of Massachusatts, Worcaster
Brown University

Brown University

University of Massachusatts, Worcester
Brown University

Brown University

Fhode Island Hospital

University of Rochester

University of Massachusatts, Worcaster
Michizan State University

University of Pittsburgh

Brown University

Bradley Hospital

Bradley Hospital

Beth Lzrazl Deaconsss Medical Center
Michigan 2tate University

Brown University

Brigham and Women's Hospital
Brown University

Brown University

Brigham and Women's Hospital

Mel zan Hospital Corp.

Mel zan Hospital Corp.

Brown University

Vanguard

PASS-THROUGH
IDENTIFYING NUMEBER

T10-T14700%

61503 70/EF32013126
P284174

647
6150371/FF52013133
687

685

T137063

UF.FAQ GR310831
WAOD3 18576 FRFS20160:02
RC105383

0050671 (127966-1)
g93

T12-751%

T12-752

1025927
RC108066BUTLER
1260

119487

152

1585

124315

401733

401766

1677

164342/164430

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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PASSED-
I*:P?%r?ﬁtm THROUGH TO
SR SUBRECIPIENTS

g 12475 § -

12,475
241,050 186,832
41,382 38,791
587,629 185,217
513,52 82.462
184,62 2,568
722,953 108,866
388,387 46,963
266,829 7.183
250,136 00,023
23,641 4,642
, 7,349
(24)
(11,841)
(9)
110,309
(1.26T)
(1267
248
136,043
17,633
29,049
124,52
198,238
73,826
16,351
16,351
18,543
12,52
4,065,399 540,895



Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

ASSISTANCE PASSED-
DIRECT AGENCY/ PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL
CLUSTERPROGERAMAGENCY LISTING o , THROUGH TO

NUMBER PASS-THROUGH IDENTIFYING NUMBER EXPENDITURES SUBRECIPIENTS
Nasenal Insitutes of Health (NTH)
Alecheol Ressarch Programs 93273 Dhirect s (3,871) 5 (3.371)
Alecheol Ressarch Programs 93273 Dhirect 67,628 15 467
Alecheol Ressarch Programs 93273 Dhirect 60
Alecheol Ressarch Programs 93273 Dhirect 627 627
Alecheol Ressarch Programs 93273 Dhirect 36,955 0,236
Alecheol Ressarch Programs 93273 Dhirect 202 447 33,143
Aleohol Reszarch Programs 93273 Dirsct 480,545 7,265
Aleohol Reszarch Programs 893273 Dhrect 12,7935
Aleohol Reszarch Programs 893273 University of Tennssses A0S-0188-8011 4
Aleohol Reszarch Programs 893273 University of Tennssses ALL-0401-3001-402 (383)
Aleohol Reszarch Programs 893273 Fhode Island Hospital TO1-3488 (2.619)
Alecheol Ressarch Programs 03.273 State of Rhods Island 372 (731)
Alecheol Ressarch Programs 03.273 Brown University 1001 (874)
Aleohol Reszarch Programs 893273 Brown University 1766 7.851
Aleohol Reszarch Programs 893273 Lehigh University 343781-78001 (6,299)
Aleohol Reszarch Programs 893273 Fhode Island Hospital TOL-T137443 15 880
Subtoral - {93.273) 80,214 61,867
Natenal Insitute on Drug Abuse (NIDA)
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 Dhrect
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 Dhrect 73,382
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 Dhrect 635,076
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 Dhrect 238,284
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 Dhrect 1,893
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 Brown University PUR-013562
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 The Mirtam Hospital T10-9865
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 The Mirtam Hospital T10-5538
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 Fhode Island Hospital T01-3440
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 The Mirtam Hospital T10-5581
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 Tufts Medical Canter 5013854-8ERV
Dirug Abuse and Addiction Fessarch Programs 893275 Eent State University 403030-BH
Dz Abuse and Addiction Ressarch Programs 3279 The Miriam Hospital T10-7147067
Dirug Abuse and Addietion Rassarch Programs 93279 The WMiriam Hospital T10-7147113
Dirug Abuse and Addietion Rassarch Programs 93279 Boston University 4500003056
Dirug Abuse and Addietion Rassarch Programs 93279 Brown University 1515
Dirug Abuse and Addietion Rassarch Programs 93279 Brigsham and Women's Hospital 77550073119
Subtotal - (93.279) 1,128,193 400,635

Nanonal Insarute on Minority Health and Health Disparines

(NIMHDY
Minority Health and Health Disparitiss Kessarch 93.307 Dhrect o965
Subtoral - (93.307) 269

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

ASSISTANCE -
CLUSTERPROGRAMAGENCY LISTING ];If:rg :I;&]:t:(}::lﬁ(l;;
NUMBER o
United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
Trans-NIH Reszarch Svpport 93.310 Direct
Trans-NIH Reszarch Svpport 03.310 University of North Carelina, Chapel Hill
Trans-NIH Reszarch Svpport 03310 Ehode Island Hospital

Subrtotal - (93.310)

Centers for Disease Control and Prevension (CDC)

The Healthy Brain Initiative: Technical Assistance to Implement

Public Health Actions related to Cognitive Health, Cognitive 9
Impairment, and Caregiving at the 3tatz and Local Lavels

Subtotal - (93.334)

s
s
s
Sy

Razgents of the University of Minnesota

Nanonal Institute of Nursing Research (NINR)

Mursing Ressarch 53.361 Direct

Mursing Raszarch 03.361 Direct

Mursing Reszarch 03.361 University of Akron

MNursing Research 03.361 University of Connacticst

Mursing Research 03361 University of Rhods [sland

Subrtotal - (93.361)

Nattenal Cancer Institute (NCI), Division of Cancer Prevention

Cancer Detection ané Diagnosis Research 03.354 University of Pittburgh

Caneer Detection and Diagnosis Kesearch 03304 University of Texas MD Anderson Canecer Center
Subrtoral - (93.384)

Narenal Cancer Instirure (NCT)

Caneer Treatment Feszarch 03305 Lucidicor Ine.

Cancer Trzatment Fesearch 03.305 NRG Oncolozy Foundation, Ine

Caneer Treatment Fassarch 03305 Mayo Clinie

Cancer Treatment Ressarch 03.305 Dana-Farber Cancer Inst.

Subtotal - (93.393)

Narenal Cancer Instirure (NCII, Division of Cancer Prevenrion

Caneer Control 53.353 University of Texas MD Anderson Cancer Center

Subrtotal - (93.359)

PASS-THROUGH

IDENTIFYING NUMBER

5114834
1M54626-WIH

POOBT03935

01121-BH
174180
006306/06102019

18069
3001372887

-
NRG-Difilvastro-GY6
2013290
MEM-206454

2800636-80-103311-1%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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3,264,594
40421
35.842

PASSED-

THEOUCGHTO
SUBRECTPIENTS

3

2,034 408

3,340,857

1034408

(34.077)
348,231
(83T
12,726

62.967

388,010

(1,351)
86.391

215,664

95,040

(684)
5312
3,000
1,764

8,592

(326)

(326)



Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2021

CLUSTERPROGRAM/AGENCY

Nanenal Heart, Lung, and Blood Institute (NHLEI)
Cardiovascular Diszases Rassarch
Cardiovascrlar Dissases Raszarch
Cardiovaseplar Diszases Faszarch
Cardiovaseplar Diszases Faszarch
Cardiovascolar Thseases Ressarch

Subtotal - (93.837)

Nanional Heart, Lung, and Blood Instinute (NHLEI)
Lung Diszases Rassarch
Subtoial - (93.838)

Nanonal Heart, Lung, and Blood Instinite (NHLEI)
Blood Diseases and Fesovrces Fassarch

Blood Dissaszs and Fesovrcss Faszarch

Subtotal -(93.839)

Nanenal Insarute of Arthrins and Museuloskelztal and Skin Dhseases
(NL4MS)

Arthritiz, Musevloskalstal and 3kin Diseases Bessarch

Arthritiz, Musevloskslatal and 3lin Dhseases Bessarch

Asthntiz, Museuloskelatal and 8lan DHseases Rassarch

Subtoral - Arthrinis, Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Research
(93.848)

Nangnal Insnrute of Diabetes and Digesave and Kidney Diseases
(NIDDEK)

DHabetes, Dizastive, and Kidney Dissaszs Extramural Rassarch
Subtoral - (93.847)

Nuadaenal Instirute of Neurelogical Diserders and Soreke (NINDS)
Extramural Research Programs in the Nevroscisnces and Nevrological
Dhzordars

Extramural Raszarch Programs in the Nevrosciencss and Nevrological
Dizordars

Extramural Rassarch Programs in the Neurosciences and Neavrological
Dizordars

Extramural Rassarch Programs in the Neurosciencess and Nevrological
Disordars

Extramural Research Programs in the Nevrosciencss and Nevrological
Dusorders

Subroral - (93.853)

ASSISTANCE
LISTING
NUMBER

03.837
83.837
83.837
83.837
83.837

53.838

53.83%
§3.839

55.846
83.846
83.846

53.847

83.833

§3.833

§3.833

B3.833

83.833

DIRECT AGENCY/

PASS-THROUGH

Dhirect

Dirsct

Dirsct

Blagents Univarsity of Naw Maxico
Brown University

Gzorge Washington University

University of Iowa
University of Iowa

Direct
Northwestern University
Brizham and Women's Hospital

Prothera Biclogics, LLC
Brown University

Yale University

PASS-THROUGH
IDENTIFYING NUMBER

3EINO4
1267

§-ALP1920-CF22

WOe0s18117
S00e44

60036404 KCMEH

121573

20171

1344

G41-ADNI-2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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350,203
337,612
58,661
(2,848)
30,593

PASSED-
THROUGHTO
SUBRECIPIENTS

g a5

3 422

974,221

ka
(=]
[
=
—

436,026

b
b
Ly
=
=

(1.614)
65,850

64,236

158.438

198,438

295,314



Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

ASSISTANCE PASSED-
DIRECT AGENCY/ PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL
CLUSTERPROGRAMAGENCY LISTING o , THROUGHTO
NIMBER PASS-THROUGH IDENTIFYING NUMBER EXPENDITURES SUBRECIPIENTS
Nartonal Institute of General Medical Sciences (NTGMS)
Allergy, Immunolozy and Transplantation Ressarch 03 855 Prothera Biologics, LLC WIH-RT-2019-1 5 62300 S -
Subrtotal - (93.853) 62,800
Nanenal Insnure of General Medical Sctences (NIGMS)
Biomedical Ressarch and Reszarch Training 83.839 Diract 239,452
Biomedieal Ressarch and Research Training 03 359 Direct 2,591,182 271,927
Biomedieal Ressarch and Research Training 03 359 Direct 1,965,734 407 204
Biomedieal Ressarch and Research Training 03 359 Brown University 026 88,155
Biomedieal Ressarch and Research Training 03 359 Brown University o35 34.81%
Biomedieal Ressarch and Research Training 03 359 Brown University 063 7.085
Biomedieal Ressarch and Research Training 03 359 Rhode Island Hospital TO1T7137296 o405
Biomedieal Ressarch and Research Training 03 359 Brown University 1225 (1%)
Biomedieal Ressarch and Research Training 03 359 Rhode Island Hospital T01-713739% 300
Biomedieal Ressarch and Research Training 03 359 Rhode Island Hospital T13-7334BMIL 20,179
Biomedical Ressarch and Feszarch Training 83838 Fhode Island Hospital T13-7350A1C 201,245
Biomedical Fessarch and Feszarch Training G3.838 The Miriam Hospital T14-T130CAZ 12,317
Biomedical Fessarch and Feszarch Training G3.838 Brown University 1442 8,151
Biomedical Fessarch and Feszarch Training G3.838 Brown University 1508 51,701
Biomedical Fessarch and Feszarch Training G3.838 Fhode Island Hospital T13-7384A18 3,063
Biomedical Fessarch and Feszarch Training G3.838 University of Rhode Island 0008565/10022 54,185
Subroral - (93.859) 3,337,552 679,131
Eunice Kennedy Shricver Nanonal Insnmre of Child Health and
Human Development (NICHD)
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Fessarch 83863 Direct 27,913
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Fessarch 83863 Direct 125477
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Fessarch 83863 Direct 131,370
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Fessarch 83863 Direct 43388
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Fessarch 83863 Direct 3,851
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Fessarch 83863 Direct 60
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Fessarch 83863 Direct 5,043 4 300
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Fessarch 83863 Direct 52
Child Health and Heman Development Extramural Fessarch 53.863 Diract 264,411
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Ressarch 93 365 Direct 2922
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Ressarch 93 365 Direct 15315
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Ressarch 93 365 Direct 315070
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Ressarch 93 365 Direct 57,191
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Ressarch 93 365 Direct 356,868 34,692
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Ressarch 93 365 Direct 342,491
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Ressarch 93 365 Direct 235772 110,513
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Ressarch 93 365 Direct 6,075 6,075
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Ressarch 93 365 Direct 5,247 4 200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2021

CLUSTERPROGRAMAGENCY

Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Raszarch
Child Haalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszsarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszsarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Human Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszsarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Human Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Ressarch
Child Haalth and Human Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Raszarch
Child Haalth and Human Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Raszarch
Child Haalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszsarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Raszarch
Child Haalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszsarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Raszarch
Child Haalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszsarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszsarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Human Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszsarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Human Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Hzalth and Heman Development Extramural Reszarch
Child Haalth and Human Development Extramural Reszarch
Subtotel - (93.865)

Nadenal Instmue on Aging (NL4)
Aging Reszarch
Aring Reszarch
Azing Ressarch
Aging Reszarch
Aring Reszarch

ASSISTANCE
LISTING
NUMBER

43863
93.863
43.865
43863
83.865
43.865
43863
83.8635
43.865
43863
83.8635
G3.865
93.863
83.8635
G3.865
93.863
83.8635
G3.865
93.863
43.865
G3.865
93.863
43.865
43863
93.863
43.865
43863
83.865
43.865
43863
83.8635
43.865
43863
83.8635
G3.865
43863
83.8635

43.566
43 .866
93 .866
43.566
43 .866

DIRECT AGENCY/
PASS-THROUGH

Diract
Dhrzct
Diract
Diract
Dhiract
Diract
Diract
Direct
Diract
Diract
Direct
Diract
Diract
Direct
Diract
Dhrzct
Direct
Diract
Dhrzct
Diract
RTI
RTI
Gezorze Washington

University of Rhode Island
Washinsgton University

Brown University
The WMiriam Hospital

MNortheastern Untversity

Tufts University
The WMiriam Hospital

Board of Trustzas, University of Arkansas
Board of Trustzes, University of Arkansas
Rzeents of the University of Michizan

Bradlay Hospital

MNortheastern University

Tufts Madical Center
Brown University

University of Texas Southwastern Madical Cantar
Rzeents of the University of California

Brown University
Brown University

Waks Forast University Health Sciences

69

PASS-THROUGH
IDENTIFYING NUMBER

PFDN

216352
254404

254404
3488/12262013
WU-15-12
GR524476
S00421-78050
HH2117
T10-7147006
51460

50184
SUBKO0008470
T127549
S00645-78051
5017115-8ERV
1710

GMO 160911
112208C

1453

15304
115-101720-350134

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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19,262
12,722
2,085
158
24,543
5379
3238
28,128
38,177

(128.541)

121,321
75,496
22
84,116
304,583
178,753
(274)
(1287)
105
(48)
410
(400}
4574
107,561
3,204
62,608
33,552
23,202
174,226
31,230

PASSED-
THROUGHTO
SUBRECIPIENTS

4,500
30,075
24,480
10.875

15,090

4,558,851

5,691
58,582
42,856
12,383
11,159

710,384



Care New England Health System and Affiliates

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2021

CLUSTER PROGEAMAGENCY

Aring Fessarch
Aging Ressarch
Aring Fessarch
Apming Rassarch
Aszing Rassarch
Aring Fessarch
Agming Rassarch
Aszing Rassarch
Aring Fessarch
Aging Ressarch
Aging Rassarch
Aring Fessarch
Aging Ressarch

Aging Ressarch

Aring Fessarch
Aging Ressarch
Aging Raszarch
Aring Fessarch
Aging Ressarch
Subrotal - (93.866)

Health Resources & Services Admintsiranen (HRSA)
PPHF (Geriatric Education Canters

PPHF Geriatric Edvcation Centers

Subroral - (93.969)

Fogarty International Center
International Research and Ressarch Training

Subtotal - (93.989)

Eunice Kennedy Shricver Nansnal Insarure of Clhiild Health and
Human Development (NICHD)

NICHDY - Contraceptive Clinical Trials Natwork - Femals Sites
WNICHTY - Contraceptive Clinical Trials Networlk - Female Bites
NICHDY - Contraceptive Clinical Trials Network - Female Sites
NICHD) - Contraceptive Clinical Trials Networlk - Female Sites
NICHD - Contract HEISN2752018011

Subroral - (93.RD)

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT TOTAL

ASSISTANCE
LISTING
NUMBER

53.866
83.866
53.866
83.866
83.866
53.866
83.866
93.866
53.866
83.866
93.866
53.866
83.866

83.866

53.866
83.866
03.866
53.866
83.866

03.965
03.060

83.539

G3.RD
G3FRD
G3.FD
G3FRD
83 FD

DIRECT AGENCY/
PASS-THROUGH

Brown University

Walce Forest University Health Sciences
Washington University

Washington University

Walce Forast University Health Sciences
University of Sovthern California
Washington University

University of Sosthern California
University of Sovthern California
Hennepin Healthears Rassareh Institute
University of Sovthern California
Washington University

University of Sovthern California

Indiana University

Hennepin Healthears Raszarch Institute
University of Sovthern California
University of Sovthern California
Washington University

University of Sovthern California

University of Rhode Island
University of BEhods L:land

Brown University

Diract

Research Foundation State University
New York University School of Madicins
Research Foundation State University

RTI

PASS-THROUGH
IDENTIFYING NUMBER

1717
505-101720
WU-20-28
WU-21-8%

-336715

48-101720-112234

137202718
WU-20-360
128140101
125212174

15233-9-01-FF3

120223660
WU-18-271
110876467
DN4683237-

BUTL/8310_BUTL

AR-1807
108777255/
105812516
WuU-18-22
75697135

11753522

0008853/08272020
77350073119

1405

1091268/2/55773

CCHNO13B
R11488%3

2-312-0216664-63772L

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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<

8,048

35,729

141,235

176,968

13,604

13,604

(594)
(115)
22,084
5.870
480,566

07411

24,048,441

5 5,660,249




Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2021

CLUSTERPROGEAM/AGENCY
AGING CLUSTER
Unated States Deparment af Health and Human Services (HHS)
Administration fer Community Living (4CL)
Specizl Programs for the Aging, Title III, Part B, Grants for Supportive

Bervices and Senior Centers
Subrotal - (93.044)

Administration fer Community Living (4CL)

Specizl Programs for the Aging, Title [I0, Part C, Nutrition Ssrvices
Subtotal - (93.043)

AGING CLUSTER TOTAL

CDB( - ENTITLEMENT GRANTS CLUSTER

United States Departnent of Housing and Urban Development (HUDY)

Community Development Block GrantsEntitlement Grants
Subroral - {14.218)

CDBG - ENTITLEMENT GRANTS CLUSTER TOTAL

CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER

United States Department of Agriculture (USDA)

Food and Nusmtnen Seniee (FNS)

School Breakfast Program and National School Lunch Program
Subrtotal - (10.533); (10.553)

CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER TOTAL

HOUSING VOUCHER CLUSTER

United States Departnent of Housing and Urban Develapment (HUDY)

Szction B Hovsing Choies Vouchers Program

Subroral - (14.871)

HOUSING VOUCHER CLUSTER TOTAL

ASSISTANCE
LISTING
NUMBER

G3.044

G3.045

14218

14.871

DIRECT AGENCY/

PASS-THROUGH

Btate of Fhods Island

State of Fhode Island

City of Pawtueleat

Btate of Fhods Island

Rhode Island Howsing

PASS-THROUGH
IDENTIFYING NUMBER

ADPI-21-01

2017-24471162

201%-1

Massi=

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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28,184

PASSED-
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SUBRECTPIENTS

]

28,184

515,352

915,392

943,576

134 845

134,845

134,845

4310

4,310

1310

26,114

26,114

16,114




Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2021

CLUSTER/PROGRAM/AGENCY

SECTION 8 PROJECT-BASED CLUSTER

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program
Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program
Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program
Subtotal - (14.195)

SECTION 8 PROJECT-BASED CLUSTER TOTAL
OTHER PROGRAMS

United States Department of Agricnlture (USDA)
Food and Nutrition Service (FNS)

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children

Subtotal - (10.557)

United States Department of Agriculture (USDA)
Food and Nutrition Service (FNS)

Child and Adult Care Food Program

Subtotal - (10.558)

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

Supportive Housing for the Elderly
Outstanding Loans @ October 1, 2020
Subtotal - (14.157)

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities
Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities
Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities
Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities
Supportive Housing for Persons with Disabilities
Subtotal - (14.181)

ASSISTANCE
LISTING NUMBER

14.195
14.195
14.1935

14.157

14.181
14.181
14.181
14.181
14.181

DIRECT AGENCY/
PASS-THROUGH

Direct
Direct
Rhode Island Housing

State of Rhode Island

State of Rhode Island

Direct

Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct
Direct

PASS-THROUGH
IDENTIFYING NUMBER

R143T781003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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82,714
380,330
110423

PASSED-
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SUBRECIPIENTS

573,669

573,669

14742535

1,474,255

24,888

24,888

112,994

112,994

3,258,283



Care New England Health System and Affiliates

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

ASSISTANCE
CLUSTERPROGRAM/AGENCY LISTING
NUMBER
United States Depariment of Housing and Urban Developmens (HUD)
Continvem of Carz Program 14.267
Continvem of Carz Program 14.267
Ceontinvem of Care Program 14267

Subeotal - (14.267)

Unired Stares Deparmmenr of Justaee (DOJ)
Office of Justice Programs (OJP)

Crims Victim Assistance

Crima Victim Assistance

Subtotal - (16.573)

Bureau of Justnce dssistance (BJ4)

Fasidential Substance Abuse Traatment for Statz Prisoners 16.593
Subeoral - (16.593)

Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS)

Publie Bafety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 16710
Subtotal - (16.710)

Bureau of Justice dssistance (BJ4)

Edward Byrna Memorial Justice Assistancs Grant Program 16.738
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistanes Grant Program 16.738

Subroral - (16.735)

United States Departnent of Labor (DOL)

H-1B Job Training Grants 17.268
Subtotel - (17.268)

Unired States Departnent of the Treasury (TREAS)

COVID-19 Coronavires Relief Fund (CEF) 21.01%
COVID-1% Coronavirus Relief Fund (CEF) 21.01%
COVID-19 Coronavirus Relief Fund (CEF) 21.019
COVID-1% Coronavires Relief Fund (CEF) 21.019
COVID-1% Coronavirus Relief Fund (CEF) 21.019

Subtoral - (21.019)

DIRECT AGENCY/
PASS-THROUGH

Fhede Island Housing
FRhede Island Housing
Rhode Island Howsing

Statz of Rhode Island Department of Public Safety
State of Rhodz Island Department of Public 3afaty

State of Rhode Island Department of Corrections

Marragansett Police Department

State of Rhodz Island Department of Corractions
Providence Police Department

Building Futures

Dract

Fhods Island Department of Haalth

Rhode Island Executive Office of Health and
Human Services

Fhods Island Department of Children, Youth and
Familizs

Fhods Island Exscutive Office of Health and
Human Barvices

PASS-THROUGH
IDENTIFYING NUMBER

RIMO3ILITOO17101811
RIMOGELITOO1703/1804
COC=26

18-1748-VOCA
18-1747-VOCA

3486273

2020CEKWX0007

34555897

2017-WY-BX-0003

ETA-153-02 SUB

AHS
WFSG

DCYF

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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333,231
20,345
10,044

PASSED-
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SUBRECIPIENTS

5

363,620

7,113
3,360

16,473

355082

399,082

81,712

81,712

14,767
53,104

67,871

150,609

150,609

139,803
8,639,848

75,454
4,200

31,853

8,911,288



Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

ASSISTANCE PASSED-
DIRECT AGENCY/ PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL
CLUSTERPROGRANM/AGENCY LISTING - . THROUGHTO
NUMBER PASS-THROUGH IDENTIFYING NUMBER EXPENDITURES SUBRECIPIENTS
Department of Veterans Affairs
VA Homealzss Providers Grant and Per Diem Program 64.024 Dirzct 5 136314 & -
Subteral - (64.024) 186,314
United States Department of Education (ED)
Special Education-Grants for Infants and Familizs 34131 Ztate of Rhode Island Department of Education 20-03-021-1/1 355,634
Subroral - (84 181) 355,684
Comgprehensive Literacy Development 34371 Fhode Island Department of Education (FIDE) Pre-E Imagins 6576
Subtotal - (84.371) 6,576
Health Resources & Services ddmintsranon (HRSA)
Maternal andé Child Health Faderal Consclidated Programs 83.110 Carz Transformation Collaboration of Rhode Island MOMSEEIN 1,415
Maternal andé Child Health Faderal Consclidated Programs 83.110 Carz Transformation Collaboration of Rhode Island 62393 337
Maternal and Child Hzalth Federal Consclidated Programs 93.110 State of Rhoda Island T5A00211767 190,152
Maternal and Child Hzalth Federal Consclidated Programs 93.110 State of Rhoda Island 19-03-028/20-03-05% 367,721
Maternal and Child Haalth Federal Consolidated Programs 93110 University of New Hampshirs 18-007 76901
Subrtoral - (93.110) 637,026
Substance Abuse and Menral Health Services Administranon
(SAMHSA)
s 2 Abuze and M = iczs Projects of Ragl | I
Sl.bftm{:_ _.-'s.bﬁ_ and Mantal Hzalth Services Projects of Regional and 53,243 Brown University 799 (422
Mational Significance
Suhstance Abuse and Mental Health 8arvicss Projects of Rerional and 93 743 Ehode Island Department of Behavioral Healthears 3608730 313,143
Mational 3iznificance - Development Dizabilitizs & Hospitals : :
phes a pE i I fr ie=s Prol = of oo 1
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Projects of Regional and 93.243 Care Transformation Collaborative of Rhoda Tsland RFP£7551007 456,775
Mational Significance :
Subroral - (93.243) TE8, 496
Health Resources & Services Adminisoration (HRSA); Centers for
Dhsease Conmal {CDEC)
Early Hearing Detection and Intervention; CDC Invastizations and az - s -
Technical Aocistanee 83251 State of Rhode Island RI-EHDI (2,093)
Early Hearing Detection and Intervention; CDC Investizations and az i T .
Techmical Assistance 93.251 State of Rhode Island RI-EHDI I (408)
Early Hearing Detection and Intervention; CDC Investigations and 93.251/93.283 Stats of Rhods Island RI-EHDI II 248 472
Technical Assistancs
Subtotal - (93.231); (93.283) 245,969

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2021

CLUSTERPROGRAMAGENCY

Eunice Kennedy Shricver Nanonal Insante of Child Health and
Human Development (NICHD)
Scholarships for Disadvantaged Students

Subroral - (93.407)

Health Resources & Services Adwnisiranon (HRSA)

ASSISTANCE
LISTING
NUMBER

93.407

COVID-1% HRSA COVID-19 Claims Ratmbursement for the Uninsurad

Program znd the COVID-1% Coverage Assistance Fund

Subtotal - (93.461)

83.461

United States Deparmment of Health and Human Services (HHS)

COVID-1% Provider Relisf Fund and American Rescoe Plan (ARP) Rural

Distribution
Subroral - (93.498)

53.458

United States Deparmment of Health and Human Services (HHS)

COVID-1% Emereeney Grants to Address Mental and Svbstance Uss
Disorders During COVID-18
COVID-1% Emereeney Grants to Address Mental and Svbstance Uss
Disorders During COVID-1%

Subtoral - (93.663)

Office of the Administranon for Children & Families (ACF)
Social S=rvices Block Grant

Subroral - (93.667)

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administranion

(SAMESA)
Opioid STR.
Opioid STR.
Subtotal - (93.788)

83.665

83.665

83.667

83.788

83.788

DIRECT AGENCY/
PASS-THROUGH

University of Alabama at Birmingham

Dirzet

Dirsct

Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Healthears
Development Disabilitizs & Hospitals

Colorado State University

Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Healthears
Development Disabilitizs & Hospitals

Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Healthears
Development Dhzabilitiss & Hospitals
Rhode Island Department of Behawvioral Healthears
Development Dhzabilitiss & Hospitals

PASS-THROUGH

IDENTIFYING NUMBER

00406231-8C0135

3656453

G-63534-01

3625709

3523

1638714

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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<

(1.120)

83,394

83,394

23,053,782

23,053,782

81,352

20,432

111,784

238,038

238,039

2,095

155,216

161,315



Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

ASSISTANCE -
CLUSTERPROGRAMAGENCY LISTING ];TSISC ggﬁg;
NUMBER o
Office af the Asststant Secratary for Preparadness and Respanse
snital B iness P 1:3) P iness and
Hospital Preparadness Program (FPF) Ebola Preparsdness and 23.817 Stats of Rhode Island
Response Activitiss
Subtotal - (93.817)
Heaith Resources & Services Adwantsiranen (HRSA) Marernal & Child
Health
Matzrnal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Prozram 93 870 Statzs of Rhodz [sland Department of Haalth
Subrtoral - (938701
Health Resources & Services Adwantsranen (HRSA)
Grants for Primary Care Training and Enhancement 03 884 Dhreet
Grants for Primary Care Training and Enhancement 53.8584 Dirsct
Grants for Primary Cars Training and Enhancement 03334 Brown University
Grants for Primary Cars Training and Enhancement 03334 Brown University
Subraral - (93.884)
Office af the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response
COVID-1% National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparadness Program 03,335 Hospital Association of Rhode Lsland
COVID-1% National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 03 385 Fhoda Island Department of Administration
Subrotal - {93.8689)
Centers for Disease Conmral and Prevennon (CDC)
Praventi 1 P s £ & itor i
Ca:.m:a-r Prav =T-nt1[.m and Control Programs for State, Territorial and 03 808 State of Rhode Tsland
Tribal Orzanizations
Praventi 1 P s £ & itor i
Cancer Pravention and Control Programs for State, Territorial and 03 808 State of Rhode Tsland

Tribal Orzanizations
Subtatal - (93.898)

Health Resources & Services Adwuntstranon (HRESA)
Bleck Grants for Community Mental Health Szrviess 03 058 State of Rhode Island
Subtotal - (93 938)

PASS-THROUGH
IDENTIFYING NUMBER

3444463-6

3533967

MOU-041020
DOH - COVID 19

20-03-010

21-03-006

36903560

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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236,279

256,279

397,018
57,391
(1,400)

(335)

492,475

120,000
37.966

157,966

5991

37,054

43,045

269,557

268,557



Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

. . - PASSED-
ASSISTANCE DIRECT AGENCY/ PASS-THROUGH FEDERAL
CLUSTER/PROGRAM/AGENCY N . N THROUGHTO
LISTING NUMBER PASS-THROUGH IDENTIFYING NUMBER EXPENDITURES
SUBRECTPIENTS
Substance Abuse and Menral Health Services Administration
(SAMHSA)
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 03939 Rhode [sland D.epa.t.n.n.ent of Beha.\mfal Healtheare 3644074 5 30007 S -
Development Disabilities & Hospitals
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 03939 Rhode [sland D.epa.t.n.n.ent ofBeha.\wml Healtheare 3644078 148,273
Development Disabilities & Hospitals
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Healthcate 35,55 647,509
Development Disabilities & Hospitals
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 93.959 Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Healthcate 3550, 193,327
Development Disabilities & Hospitals
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 03939 Rhode [sland D.epa.rT:r.n.ent UfBEha"noral Healthcare 333803 641,600
Development Disabilities & Hospitals
Subtotal - (93.959) 1,669,896
Health Resonrces & Services Administration (HRS.A)
Maternal and Chld Health Services Block Grant to the States 93.994 State of Fhode Island RIDOH 376
Subtatal - (93.994) 376
United States Department of Homeland Security (DHS)
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEM.A)
Non-Profit Security Program 97.008 State of Rhode Island 123-06-2018N5PG 33,000
Subtotal - (97.008) 55,000
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
W i - ; i i ially
Cl;} TD-12 Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared 07036 State of Rhode Island 180102 B/WE 216 370861
Disasters)
W i - ; i i ially
Cl;} TD-12 Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared 07036 State of Rhode Island 182634 P/WE 108 574583
Disasters)
Subtotal - (97.036) 945454
OTHER PROGRAMS TOTAL 5 44,599,653 § -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 70,330,608 § 5,660,249

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

1. Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the total
consolidated expenditures of Care New England Health System and its affiliates (“Care New
England”) under programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2021. The
information presented in the Schedule is presented on the accrual basis of accounting, which is in
accordance with the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OASC-3, Department
of Health and Human Services Principles for Determining Costs Applicable to Research and
Development under Grants and Contracts with Hospitals, wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited to reimbursement.

For purposes of the Schedule, federal awards include all grants, contracts and similar agreements
entered into directly by Care New England with agencies and departments of the federal
government and all subawards to Care New England by nonfederal organizations pursuant to
federal grants, contracts and similar agreements. Negative amounts on the Schedule represent
adjustments to expenditures reported in the prior year. Because the Schedule presents only the
federal award activity of Care New England, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets and cash flows of Care New England. Assistance listing numbers
and pass-through numbers are provided when available.

2. Indirect Expenses

Indirect costs are charged to certain federal grants and contracts at federally approved
predetermined indirect rates. Care New England has thus not elected to use the 10% de minimis
indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

3. Funding from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

The Providence Center, Inc., whose sole corporate member is Care New England received
funding from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) in both the current
and prior years. The funding has been included in the accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards in consideration of the fact that the federal programs from which the funding
originates imposes continuing compliance requirements on the use of the properties acquired and
rehabilitated for specified periods ranging from 10 to 40 years. Those programs, include the

following:

Entity Assistance Listing # Capital
Advances

Grandview Second Corporation 14.181 $1,173,200
Wilson Street Apartments, Inc. 14.181 1,152,335
Wilson Street Apartments, Inc. 14.181 18,465
Nashua Street Corporation 14.181 834,200
Wilson Street Apartments, Inc. 14.181 80,083
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended September 30, 2021

Additionally, The Providence Center, Inc. has a mortgage note with HUD on the property that

follows:

Entity Assistance Listing # Amount
Outstanding

Grandview Realty Corporation 14.157 $79,803

4. CARES Act Provider Relief Funds

The Schedule includes grant activity related to the Department of Health and Human Services
("HHS") Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Distribution Assistance Listing
Number 93.498. As required based on guidance in the 2021 OMB Compliance Supplement, the
Schedule includes all Period 1 funds received between April 10, 2020 and June 30, 2020 and
expended by June 30, 2021 as reported to HRSA via the Provider Relief Funding Reporting Portal.
The Schedule thus includes $23,085,850 of reportable Provider Relief Payments which includes
$7,403,539 of direct expenditures and $15,682,311 in lost revenue. Given the timing covered by
Period 1, certain expenses were reflected in Care New England's fiscal year 2020 financial
statements. Additionally, lost revenue does not represent an expenditure in Care New England’s
financial statements and thus is a reconciling item between the federal expenses in the Care New
England's financial statements and the amount included on the Schedule.

5. Division of Family Health (WIC) (Assistance Listing #10.557)

Care New England determines participant eligibility for receipt of food vouchers as part of the
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for the Women, Infants and Children program (Assistance
Listing # 10.557). Of the $1,474,255 in expenditures presented in the Schedule, $483,349
represents direct costs incurred by Care New England for this program. The food vouchers for
which Care New England determined eligibility for amounted to $990,906 for the year ended
September 30, 2021.

6. State of Rhode Island Pass-Through Funds for 10.553/10.555 and 93.251/93.283

Care New England expended $4,310 from the State of Rhode Island for the School Breakfast
Program Assistance Listing #10.553/National School Lunch Program Assistance Listing #10.555.
The State of Rhode Island did not provide Care New England with any information regarding how
the spending should be allocated between the two Assistance Listing numbers. As such,
expenditures under this program are commingled on the Schedule.

Care New England expended $245,969 from the State of Rhode Island for the Early Hearing
Detection and Intervention Assistance Listing #93.251/Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
Investigations and Technical Assistance, Assistance Listing #93.283. The State of Rhode Island
did not provide Care New England with any information regarding how the spending should be
allocated between the two Assistance Listing numbers. As such, expenditures under this program
are commingled on the Schedule.
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Care New England Health System

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Care New
England Health System and its affiliates (“Care New England”), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as of September 30, 2021, and the related consolidated statements of operations, of changes in net
assets and of cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2021.

The PricewaterhouseCoopers firm in the Cayman Islands performed audit procedures for the Women and
Infants Indemnity, Ltd. and Kent County Memorial Hospital Toll Gate Indemnity, Ltd., comprising
approximately 17% of total assets of Care New England for the year ended September 30, 2021. Personnel
of this firm, excluding United States personnel, do not participate in a continuing education program that
fully satisfies the requirement set forth in Chapter 4, paragraph 4.16 of Government Auditing Standards.
However, this firm does participate in continuing education programs applicable in the Cayman Islands.
Further, the PricewaterhouseCoopers affiliated firm in the Cayman Islands does not have an external
quality review by an unaffiliated audit organization as required by Chapter 5, paragraph 5.60 of
Government Auditing Standards, since no such program is offered by professional organizations in the
country. However, this office participates in the PricewaterhouseCoopers worldwide internal control
review program, which requires the office to be periodically subjected to an extensive quality control
review by partners and managers from other PricewaterhouseCoopers affiliated firms.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Care New England’s
internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Care New England's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Care New England's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 101 Seaport Boulevard, Suite 500, Boston, MA 02210
T: (617) 530 5000, www.pwc.com/us
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deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Care New England’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

/Em.,mh.m Coopina LL?

Boston, Massachusetts
December 20, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance with Requirements
That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors
Care New England Health System

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Care New England Health System and its affiliates’ (“Care New England”) compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on each of Care New England’s major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2021. Care New England’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Care New England’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Care New
England’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Care New England’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Care England Health System and its affiliates complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying schedule

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 101 Seaport Boulevard, Suite 500, Boston, MA 02210
T: (617) 530 5000, www.pwc.com/us
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of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-001. Our opinion on each major federal program is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Care New England's response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Management’s Views and Corrective Action Plan. Care New England's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Care New England is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Care New England’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Care New England's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

/Pmiu.w-&l«\nom Cospana LL?

Boston, Massachusetts
June 23, 2022
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2021

L. Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial statements audited by PwC

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

Material weakness identified? Yes v No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? Yes _\_ None Reported

Noncompliance which is material to financial statements. __ Yes ~ No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? __ Yes N _No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses? __Yes \_ None Reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major Unmodified
programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? v Yes No

Identification of major programs

Program Name Assistance Listing #
COVID-19 Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019
COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue 93.498
Plan Rural Distribution
COVID-19 Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036
(Presidentially Declared Disasters)
Research and development cluster Various
Dollar threshold for Type A and Type B programs: $2,109,918
Auditee qualifies as low-risk auditee? _\ Yes _ No

Il Financial Statement Findings

None noted.
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Care New England Health System and Affiliates
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2021

lll. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

2021-001: Reporting with the Health Resources & Services Administration (HRSA) Provider Relief Fund
Portal

Program: COVID-19 - Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan Rural Distribution

Assistance Listing Number: 93.498

Agency: Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA)

Award Year: 1/1/2020-9/30/2021

Award Number: Not available

Condition

In October 2021, management submitted their period 1 reporting into the HRSA portal. Management
selected option 2, Lost Revenue Reporting Method: 2020 Budgeted Revenues, for the recognition of lost
revenues in their HRSA portal submission.

Through the testing of this special reporting, we identified the Care New England Health System’s budget
for the period October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020 (fiscal year 2020) was approved by the Board
of Directors on August 22, 2019. However, Care New England Health System’s budget for the period
October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021 (fiscal year 2021) was approved by the Board of Directors
post March 27, 2020, September 24, 2020. Thus, the 2020 calendar year fourth quarter (October 1, 2020
through December 31, 2020) was not approved by the Board of Directors (BoD) prior to March 27, 2020.
For the 2021 calendar year first and second quarters (January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021), Care New
England Health System utilized the previously approved fiscal year 2020 budget. As a result, Care New
England incorrectly selected option 2 within their period 1 reporting into the HRSA portal.

The table below depicts when Care New England Health System’s operating budgets were approved by
their Board of Directors.

Calendar year quarters

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 2021 Q2 2021
2020 2020 2020 2020
Budget approved by 8/22/19 | 8/22/19 | 8/22/19 | 9/24/20 8/22/19 8/22/19
BoD
Approved by BoD Yes Yes Yes No Yes, used 2020 | Yes, used 2020
before 3/27/20 budget budget

After our identification of this reporting error, in the selection of option 2, management amended their
filing in December 2021 to report lost revenues under option 3, Lost Revenue Reporting Method:
Alternative Reasonable Methodology. There was no change in lost revenues captured in the HRSA
portal under option 2 or amended reporting under option 3.

Criteria

Law (Pub. L. No. 116-136, 134 Stat. 563 and Pub. L. No. 116-139, 134 Stat. 622 and 623) notes that
Provider Relief Funds should be used to prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus, domestically or
internationally, for necessary expenses to reimburse, through grants or other mechanisms, eligible health
care providers for health care related expenses or lost revenues that are attributable to coronavirus.
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HRSA Provider Relief Funds can be used to offset healthcare-related expenses or lost revenues
attributable to COVID-19. HRSA provided three options for assessing lost revenue at organizations per
the HRSA Provider Relief Fund Lost Revenue Guide released in August 2021. The three different
options to calculate the lost revenues are described below:

Option 1) Difference Between 2019 Actual and Total revenue/Net charges for patient care revenues
(Actuals for each quarter during the period of availability versus 2019 Actuals).

Option 2) Difference Between 2020 Budgeted and Actual Total revenue/Net charges for patient care
revenues (Actuals for each quarter of availability versus Budgets for each quarter of availability). For
organizations that selected option 2, an organization is required to have an Executive Level Attestation
and Approval of their budget prior to March 27, 2020.

Option 3) Any reasonable method of estimating revenues (otherwise known as a hybrid approach).

Cause

Care New England Health System misinterpreted the HRSA guidance and was not cognizant of the fact
that all budgets within period 1, including the period from October 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020
which was in the System'’s fiscal year 2021 but calendar year 2020 (and reporting period 1) must be
approved prior to March 27, 2020 in order to select option 2.

Effect

The budget for r calendar year Q4 2020 was not approved prior to March 27, 2020. This did not have an
impact on the accuracy of the total revenue numbers reported in Reporting Period 1. The data provided
for lost revenues within the amended submission matched the original submission done by Care New
England Health System.

Questioned Costs
None noted.

Recommendation

We recommend management design and implement an internal control around review of the HRSA
guidance and the subsequent submissions in order to ensure proper review of all elements of the relevant
guidance prior to submission to the portal. Additionally, we recommend management communicate the
error noted in the submission to HRSA and request advice for how to correct this error.

Management's View and Corrective Action Plan
Management’s view and corrective action plan is included at the end of this report.
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No prior year findings from prior years that require an update in this report.
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@ cCare

4 Richmond Square

Suite 400

Providence, Rhode Island 02906
401-453-7900 | 1-888-4CARENE
carenewengland.org

June 21, 2022

As required by Uniform Guidance Compliance Requirements (2 CFR Part 200), we have provided below
our response and corrective action plan addressing the finding in the Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Management’s Views and Corrective Action Plan

2021-001: Reporting with the Health Resources & Services Administration Provider Relief Fund Portal
Program: COVID-19 - Provider Relief Fund (PRF)

Assistance Listing Number: 93.498

Agency: Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) Health Resources and Services
Administration (HRSA)

Award Year: 1/1/2020-9/30/2021

Award Number: Not available

In October 2021, we submitted Period 1 reporting through the HRSA portal. We selected option 2, Lost
Revenue Reporting Method: 2020 Budgeted Revenues, for the recognition of lost revenues in our HRSA
portal submission. We agree that this option should not have been selected due to our Q4 2020 budget
not being approved by 3/27/20. We resubmitted the Provider Relief Funds Report Period 1 on December
20, 2021 during the open resubmission period. As instructed by HRSA, we provided detail on the
methodology and rationale for option 3 during the resubmission. No further action is required;
management has remediated the reporting.

There was no impact on the accuracy of the total revenue numbers reported in Reporting Period 1
regardless of methodology. The data provided for lost revenues within the amended submission matched
the original submission done by Care New England Health System.

At the onset of the pandemic, Care New England assembled the Provider Relief Task Force which
includes Senior Leadership as well as representatives from Finance, Planning and Philanthropy
departments responsible for coordinating efforts related to preventing, preparing, and responding to
COVID-19. The Task Force remains committed to regularly reviewing and communicating new and
updated guidance from HRSA, the HRSA portal and HRSA FAQ provided therein to ensure all reporting

includes the most up to date information and guidance available.

Responsible Party

DocuSigned by:

j(}Sb,'?(A, [asni

59523CQCD224465...
Josepﬁ faRnhoni

Executive Vice President/Chief Financial Officer
Care New England

4 Richmond Square

Providence, Rl 02906
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